The next generation CONTROL®

version 10.5 Power Bl Integration





Table of Contents

| Overview | 3 |
|---|---|
| Power Pivot models | 3 |
| Create a Power Pivot model | 4 |
| Power Pivot model properties | 5 |
| Export a Power Pivot model | |
| Script the export of Power Pivot model | |
| Add a menu item to export a Power Pivot Model | |
| Drop exported Power Pivot model objects | |
| The Power Pivot model edit book | |
| Source view definition | |
| Additional views | |
| Calculation groups | |
| Exported Tables | |
| Relationship Overrides | |
| Datasources | |
| AS Usage and definition | |
| КРІ | |
| AS Sort By Column | |
| AS Display Folder | |
| Information Table | |
| Tabular Editor | |
| Easy Power BI | |
| Categories | |
| Power BI Template Model and Views | |
| Export Script | |
| Creating Easy Power BI Views | |



| Other administrative notes | 60 |
|--|----|
| Override AS table name | 60 |
| Re-use exported relational tables | 62 |
| Table Storage | 64 |
| Creating Visualizations in Microsoft Power BI desktop | 64 |
| SQL Server Database | 64 |
| SQL Server Analysis Services | 69 |
| Excel Pivot Table using an Analysis Services Model Example | 74 |
| Pivot Table and Pivot Chart view styles | 78 |
| Additional resources | 79 |
| CONTROL® environment setup | 79 |





Overview

This document describes the integration of CONTROL® with Microsoft's Power BI data visualization product and with Excel's pivot table function.

This integration also provides a gateway to other popular business intelligence and reporting tools, as most of these products work well with the supported data structures.

CONTROL® applications store their data in relational database tables, typically Microsoft SQL Server or Oracle. These tables are organized into a star schema structure (fact and dimension tables). This organization supports CONTROL®'s extensive dynamic computational capabilities, reporting options, and ability to handle multiple hierarchies. However, the organization can be cumbersome for other reporting tools. CONTROL®'s Power BI integration provides a bridge from the star schema structure to one more convenient for visualization tools. At the heart of the integration are CONTROL® **Power Pivot Models** that are used to manage the export of data and meta-data from CONTROL® for consumption by business intelligence and reporting tools.

The integration works in stages:

- **Stage 1** (Required): Creating relational tables or relational views of data and meta-data based on one or more CONTROL® computational or source data views.
- **Stage 2** (Optional): Creating a SQL Server Analysis Services Tabular model based on those relational tables or relational views.

The output of either stage can be used by Power BI, Excel, or other products.

Because of the completeness of the Analysis Services semantic data model, creating a tabular model will yield a richer user experience with less effort for those products that interface to it.

Power Pivot models

CONTROL® **Power Pivot** models specify the data you want exported, and how you want it exported. Several options allow flexibility over how the data will appear to your targeted product.

Here is how it works:

- Create a **Power Pivot** model based on a computational or source data model, and optionally on a view from that model. This specifies the data and levels of summarization that will be available.
- If you do not specify a pre-built view, you can create a view with the filters, branches, etc. that you want within the **Power Pivot** model's edit book. You can also include custom dimensions.





- Specify the export options to integrate the CONTROL® data with external systems, or use the default values, which in most cases works fine.
- Use the **Export** button on the **CONTROL® Model** ribbon to affect the transfer.
- You can also create a script to run the export as a scheduled process or to run it from your application menu system.
- Access the data in your favorite BI tool!

Create a Power Pivot model

Here is a simple example of creating a **Power Pivot** model using a view on the **Revenue** model:

| | A | В | с | D | E F |
|----|--------------------------------|------------------------------|----------------------------|----------------------------|------------------------|
| 1 | Filters: | | | | |
| 2 | Pages: | Customer (Total Customer) | Product (Total Product) | Time Period (Year 2018) | dl |
| 4 | \bigcirc | Revenue - Reporti | ng Revenue - Var | iance Power Pivot | t |
| 7 | COMPANY NAME Company Stopan | Customer Total C | ustomer :: Product | Total Product :: T | ïme Period Year 2018 |
| 9 | USD Amounts not Scaled | | | | |
| 10 | | Scenario | | | |
| 11 | Revenue Account | Actuals | Budget | Forecast | |
| 12 | Units | 42,311,833 | 74,950,287 | 42,311,833 | |
| 13 | -Price | 5.00 | 2.94 | 5.01 | |
| 14 | Gross Sales | 211,413,868 | 220,620,274 | 212,037,998 | |
| 15 | Sales Discount | 7,651,152 | 9,643,924 | 7,673,307 | |
| 16 | Sales Returns and Allowances | 6,190,501 | 7,740,706 | 6,208,777 | |
| 17 | Shipping Charges | 3,265,966 | 3,999,990 | 3,275,867 | |
| 18 | Other Incomes | 3,072,065 | 3,761,691 | 3,081,389 | |
| 19 | -Net Revenue | 197,378,314 | 202,997,344 | 197,961,436 | |
| 20 | | | | | ' |

- 1. In the **Object Navigation** task pane, in the **Structure** group, click **Model**, right click **Power Pivot**, and then click **New**.
- 2. In the **Model Templates** pane of the **New Model** dialog, choose **Power Pivot Exported to AS**.
- 3. In the **Properties** pane, make the following entries and then click **OK and Save**.
 - Name: Revenue Variance Power Pivot
 - **ID**: REVENUE_VARANCEPOWERPVOT
 - Base Model: Revenue Reporting
 - Base View: Revenue Variance Power Pivot
 - Analysis Services Usage: Exported to AS Power BI and Excel (Recommended)
 - Power Pivot Style: Dimension and Fact Tables (Star Join)



- **Power Pivot Anchor**: Variable
- Materialization Behavior: Materialize



Power Pivot model properties

| Real Properties for Model F | Revenue - | – Variance Power Pivot | × |
|---|-----------|---|---|
| I∃ ↓ ^A Search | | | × |
| 4 Identification | | | ^ |
| Name | (i) | Revenue – Variance Power Pivot | |
| ID | (i) | REVENUE_VARANCEPOWERPVOT | |
| Class | | Model | |
| Subclass | (i) | Power Pivot | |
| Category | | 350 Revenue (ID: 350_REV) | • |
| Description | | Copy of object template: Power Pivot - Exported to AS | |
| 4 Definition | | | |
| Base Model | i | Revenue - Reporting (ID: EXMP_REV_RP) | - |
| Base View | | Revenue - Variance Power Pivot (ID: REVENUE_VARANCEPOWERPVOT) | - |
| Analysis Services Usa | age | Exported to AS - Power BI and Excel (Recommended) | ~ |
| Logging Accessibility Miscellaneous | | | |



| Power Pivot Options | | |
|------------------------|------------|---------------------------------------|
| Power Pivot Style | (j) | Dimension and Fact Tables (Star Join) |
| Power Pivot Anchor | | Variable |
| Materialization Beh | i) | Materialize |
| Materialization Protoc | | |
| Table Schema | | |
| Table Name Or Prefix | | RevenueVariancePowerPivot |
| Augment Dimensions | | No additional processing |
| Refresh Behavior | (j) | Manual |
| Export Status | | Exported and up to date |
| Last Export Time | | Friday, November 20, 2020 1:14:12 AM |
| AS Database[AS Model] | | RevenueReporting |
| AS Server | | |
| AS Connection Behavi | | Reconnect using current details |
| | | |

The table below lists the most important properties:

| Property | Definition |
|----------------------------|---|
| Name | The name of the Power Pivot model. (If exported to AS, this will be the name of the model in AS, unless you supply an override) |
| ID | The ID of the Power Pivot model. (If exported to AS, this will be the name of the database in AS, unless you supply an override) |
| Base Model | The name of the computational or source data model used as the source of the data. |
| Base View | The name of the view that filters the specific data from the base model. |
| Analysis Services Usage | Defines whether to export the model to an Analysis Services (AS) Tabular model, or if it is a reference to an externally created and maintained AS model. |
| | Not Exported to AS option creates relational tables or relational views of data and meta-data based on the Power Pivot model. |
| | For Power Pivot models exported to Analysis Services this property is set to Exported to AS – Power BI and Excel (Recommended) by default. The export creates measures for each data column in the fact table and hence the AS model works with both Excel and Power BI. |
| | The Export to AS – Power BI creates data columns in the fact table but no measures. The AS model works fine with Power BI. However, pivot |





| | table in Excel does not produce right results with this model as it expects a measure for data columns. This option is available only to support existing models and should not be used for Power Pivot models going forward. | | | | | | | |
|-----------------------|---|---|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| | Managed Externally in AS indicates that the Power Pivot model is a reference to an externally created and maintained AS model. | | | | | | | |
| | Note : Using this property is re AS infrastructure and knowled Microsoft's Power BI products | ecommended only if you have the required dge; however, it is not required for use with s, or for other BI applications. | | | | | | |
| Power Pivot Style | Specify whether you want to stable or organized into dimen | see all the data and meta-data in a single sion and fact tables. | | | | | | |
| | A single table will be simpler to results in a small number of d | to navigate for an inexperienced user and ata fields. | | | | | | |
| | Dimension and fact tables are organized structure, and this in AS and Power BI. | e a more efficient and more logically style is recommended, particularly for use | | | | | | |
| Power Pivot Anchor | Specify the dimension to anche members of this dimension w | nor the Power Pivot model on – the ill be the fields of the fact table. | | | | | | |
| | Power Pivot Options | | | | | | | |
| | Power Pivot Style (i) | Dimension and Fact Tables (Star Join) | | | | | | |
| | Power Pivot Anchor | None ~ | | | | | | |
| | Materialization Beh i) | None | | | | | | |
| | Power Pivot Anchor | Variable | | | | | | |
| | Specifies thedimension to anchor | Organization is | | | | | | |
| | column in your fact table. | Scenario | | | | | | |
| | | Custom | | | | | | |
| | | Recommended | | | | | | |
| | 26 | Row Edge | | | | | | |
| | 27 | Column Edge | | | | | | |
| | 28 | Page Edge | | | | | | |

Specify **None** (default) to have a single data column in your fact table.





Specify **Variable** to have members of the Variable dimension be the fields and measures in your fact table.

Specify **Organization** to have members of the Organization dimension(s) be the fields and measures in your fact table. If your view has more than one Organization dimension; then the fields in the fact table will be the combination of the organization dimension members.

Specify **Time** to have members of the Time dimension be the fields and measures in your fact table.

Specify **Scenario** to have members of the Scenario dimension be the fields and measures in your fact table.

Specify **Custom** to have members of the Custom dimension be the fields and measures in your fact table. This is applicable where your view(s) are based on a Custom dimension.

Specify **Recommended** when you are not sure about how to choose the dimension to anchor for your **Power Pivot** model. CONTROL® will choose an anchor dimension in the following order:

- a. Custom
- b. Scenario
- c. Variable

Specify **Row Edge** to have members of the dimension(s) on the Row Edge be the fields and measures in your fact table. If your view has more than one dimension on the Row Edge; then the fields in the fact table will be the combination of members of the dimensions on the row edge.

Specify **Column Edge** to have members of the dimension(s) on the Column Edge be the fields and measures in your fact table. If your view has more than one dimension on the Column Edge; then the fields in the fact table will be the combination of members of the dimensions on the column edge.

Specify **Page Edge** to have members of the dimension(s) on the Page Edge be the fields and measures in your fact table. If your view has more than one dimension on the Page Edge; then the fields in the fact table will be the combination of members of the dimensions on the page edge.





| Materialization | Specify whether to create relational tables, relational views, or virtual |
|-----------------|---|
| Behavior | tables: |

- Automatic will decide whether the view(s) of the Power Pivot model is simple enough so that relational views on the underlying CONTROL® tables can be used, so that the data and meta-data is always current without re-executing the relational export. There are a lot of conditions to satisfy, so this is rarely the case. If the computational view(s) has any calculations, currency conversions, custom dimensions, merged hierarchies, or a non-anchored data table - the view will be materialized.
- **Materialize** will create relational tables when you export the CONTROL® information. This option yields the greatest degree of fidelity with the data and meta-data you see in the CONTROL® view, accommodating dynamic calculations, currency conversions, multiple hierarchies of the same dimension, and custom dimensions.
- **Do not Materialize** will create relational views of the hierarchy tables and data table in your model, <u>not</u> restricted by the filters and branches in the view. The style must be **Dimension and Fact** and the fact table will be anchored on the same dimension as the model's data table. This option should only be used when you want the export to be as close to the "raw" data in the underlying CONTROL® model.
- Materialize as Virtual Tables is functionally equivalent to Materialize, except that no new tables are created. The exported data is written to pre-defined utility tables, and relational views on those tables are created. This option is useful if table creation is restricted or you need to quarantine the exported data in a single location.
- **Create views on base tables** creates relational views on the underlying hierarchy and data tables in your model, restricted by the filters and branches in your view. This option should only be selected when there is no dynamically calculated data (other than time or organization rollups), no currency conversion, and one hierarchy for each dimension in the view.
- **Materialize without Foreign Keys** will create relational tables without the foreign keys on the Fact table when you export the





| | CONTROL [®] information. This option helps debug export of multiple views. |
|-----------------------------|--|
| | The advantage of the options that do not materialize data is you do not need to rerun the export when the CONTROL® data or meta-data changes. |
| | You should only use those options when you have a complete understanding of their limitations. |
| Materialization Protocol | Specify how to iterate on parts of the model/view for very large data sets. You only need to use this option if the view contains a very large amount of data or if the memory of the computer running the export is limited. |
| | The syntax for specifying the data transfer protocol is the same as used in mappings and transforms. For more details, you can refer to the Specifying a Data Transfer Protocol topic in the CONTROL® Administrators Reference Manual. |
| Table Schema | Specify the relational schema where you want the exported table(s) created. If left blank (default), then the resolved value in the &KCI_RDBMS_Schema keyword defines the schema. |
| | Note : Processes external to CONTROL [®] will access these tables, so you should be sensitive to your company's security policies. |
| Table Name or Prefix | Specify prefix for the name of the relational table(s) that are created. For a star schema, this will be the prefix of the table name, for example, <i>prefix_</i> Fact, <i>prefix_</i> Dimension1, etc. |
| | If left blank, then the model and dimension names define the relational table names. |
| Augment Dimensions | This option determines whether additional columns will be added to dimension tables, and only applies if the Power Pivot Style is Dimension and Fact Tables . |
| | No additional processing (Default) indicates that only the columns indicated by the views' selected branches and implied by the Materialization Behavior will be exported. |





| | Create a date/time field on the time dimension will create a column named FullDate, with a data type of datetime, and the values will correspond to the implied date of the lowest level members of the time dimension in the view. This column is required if you want to make use of the Power BI time intelligence features. Add all fields to all dimensions will add all the levels and attributes reported to by any levels in a dimension branch, as well as adding the FullDate column to the time dimension. If the model is exported to AS, hierarchies will be defined for any additional branches. |
|---------------------------|---|
| AS Database[AS Model] | Specify the Analysis Services database and model in the format: databaseID[modelName] |
| | For a CONTROL-Managed AS Power Pivot model: If you leave this field blank, the database will have the same ID and name as the CONTROL® Power Pivot model. If you specify only the databaseID, then the AS model will have the same name as the CONTROL® model. For an externally managed AS database and model: You must specify the databaseID. If you omit the model name, CONTROL® will automatically use the name of the AS model in that database. |
| AS Server | Specify the name of the server where the Analysis Services tabular instance for this model resides. For a CONTROL-Managed AS model, if you leave this server name blank, then the replacement value of the &KCI_ASServer keyword defines the server. |
| Impersonation Mode | Specify how SQL Server Analysis Services will query the supplied CONTROL [®] data. |
| AS Connection Behavior | You can connect to the Analysis Services server with the current connection information saved in the CONTROL® database or use the information saved in the workbook that you can modify. |

Export a Power Pivot model





You can export a **Power Pivot** model manually or create a script to export it on a schedule. To export it manually edit the **Power Pivot** model. On the **CONTROL® Model** ribbon, in the **Construction** group, click the arrow on the bottom of the **Export** button.

| | | | | | Revenue - | - Variance | Power Pivo | t Model - | CONTRO | L© | | | | | | |
|---|--------|---------------|----------|-------|-----------|------------|------------|-----------|---------|-------|------|---------|----|-------|-------|------|
| D | ata | Review | View | | CONTRO | L® Naviga | tor C(| ONTROL® | View | CONT | ROL® | Develop | er | CONTR | OL® M | odel |
| | 7 | <mark></mark> | 6 | | | Ø | - | H | H, | 1 | | | | | | |
| | Export | Drop | Object | Data | Storage | Changes | Universe | Save | Discard | Close | | | | | | |
| | * | - - | Access / | Acces | S | | | | Changes | | | | | | | |
| | C | reate or R | leplace | - F | ntenance | | Display | | Model | | | | | | | |
| 1 | U | pdate | | + | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | R | eprocess | AS Model | | A | | в | | с | | D | | | | _ | - |

The table below defines the multiple export commands you can select:

| Export command | Used to |
|--|--|
| Create or Replace > Relational Objects | Create new relational tables/views based on the CONTROL® Power Pivot model or if the tables/views already exist, then rebuilds the relational tables removing any customizations done. |
| Create or Replace > All | Create new relational tables/views based on the CONTROL® Power Pivot model and creates the AS model using the exported relational tables/views. If the tables/views and AS model already exist, then rebuilds the relational tables removing any customizations done and then rebuilds the AS model. |
| Update > Relational Objects | Repopulates or recreates relational tables/views based on the CONTROL® Power Pivot model retaining any customizations (additional views or exported tables, measures/KPIs, Alias, relationship overrides) done after the initial export. |
| Update > All | Repopulates or recreates relational tables/views based on the CONTROL® Power Pivot model retaining any customizations (additional views or exported tables, measures/KPIs, Alias, relationship overrides) done after the initial export; then rebuilds and repopulates the AS model. |
| Reprocess AS model > Recreate | Rebuilds and repopulates the AS model from the (possibly customized) relational objects. This option only applies to models |





| | exported to AS. The relational tables/views are not recreated or repopulated. |
|---|---|
| Reprocess AS model > Process Only | Reprocess the AS model only from the current values in the relational tables. This option only applies to models exported to AS. The relational tables/views are not recreated or repopulated. Use this option if you have changed the AS model with an external tool (e.g., Tabular Editor). |

Note: Important change from 10.4 – **Create or Replace All** will NO LONGER preserve customizations, like adding measures.

Below are the processes that run if you choose the **Create or Replace** command:

- The base model and view are validated for the user, based on CONTROL®'s object and data access privileges, as are all additional views and additional tables.
- The views' meta-data and data are generated according to the view definitions and options, including currency translation.
- The meta-data and data in the views are manipulated and the dimension and fact tables are written and populated.
- CONTROL[®] creates SQL datasource objects, one for each created table, so you can review the relational objects using standard CONTROL[®] capabilities.
 - The export of variable and custom dimensions containing simple ratio calculations will automatically create the appropriate DAX, when they are the anchor dimension for the export.
- If the Analysis Services Usage property is set to Exported to AS Power BI and Excel (Recommended) or Exported to AS – Power BI, a connection is made to the Analysis Services Server, and the AS objects are created and processed.

Note: The export to AS tabular requires SQL Server 2016 or a higher version.

Script the export of Power Pivot model

To facilitate the periodic refresh of the relational tables and AS models, **Export PowerPivot Model** is available as a script action step.



| Selected Content | * X ^ V | | |
|---------------------------------------|--------------------------|--|---------------------------|
| Publish Form | Туре | Name | Argument |
| Publish Sheet | 1 Export PowerPivot Mode | Revenue - Variance Power Pivot | PowerPivotModel=REVENI |
| Publish Excel Workbook | | | |
| Export PowerPivot Model | | | |
| | | -98677 | |
| Se rch | Script Item Properties | | |
| 200 Overhead | A Search | | |
| Expenses - Power Pivot - Analysis I | | | |
| ▲ 350 Revenue | * Identification | D | |
| REV - PBI - Analysis - AS | Name | Revenue - variance Power Pivot | |
| Rev - Power Privit - Anarysis - AS | step | 110 1 | |
| Revenue - Power Pivot Model | - Definition | DoworDirectModel_PEVENUE VARANCED | OWERD//OT Down/Doublindet |
| Revenue - Variance Power Pivot | Artice Tree | Forest Description Model | owenevol, rowerrivotopuat |
| Revenue - Variance Power Pivot Excel | Action type | Export PowerPriot Model | |
| ▲ 603 Financial Statements - Power Bl | Internal Action Type | 12 | |
| FS - Power BI - Key Matrix | Export PowerPivot Mo | Revenue - Variance Power Pivot (ID: REVE | NUE_VARANCEPOWERPVOT) |

The export options available through the **Export Power Pivot** action step are more comprehensive and include all options from the previous release.

| Script Item Properties | | ¥ |
|-----------------------------------|--------------------------------------|---|
| IE ↓A Search | | × |
| internal Action Type | Create Only | ~ |
| Export PowerPivot Mo | Delete and Create | |
| Parameters | Create or Replace Relational Objects | |
| Comment | Create or Replace All | |
| Perform If | Update Relational Objects | |
| PowerPivotModel | Update All | |
| Power Pivot Updati 🔴 | Create or Replace AS Model | ~ |
| Power Pivot Updating | Process AS Model | |
| Specify the undating helpsylor of | the expert process | |

Specify the updating behavior of the export process

So, in addition to the export options available in the **Power Pivot** model's edit book, the following two additional options are available in the action step:

| Export command | Used to |
|----------------|---|
| Create Only | Create new relational tables/views based on the CONTROL® Power Pivot model. If the relational tables/views or AS database/model exist, the process will fail. |
| | Use this option if you do not want to overwrite any existing objects. |





Delete and Create Delete the relational tables/views and re-create them based on the CONTROL[®] **Power Pivot** model.

Add a menu item to export a Power Pivot Model

To make exporting easily available from the application menu, **Export PowerPivot Model** is now an option for a static or dynamic menu item. The export from the menu item does the **Export > Update All**.







Drop exported Power Pivot model objects

When you are developing **Power Pivot** models there may be occasions when you need to drop the exported objects and start afresh. You can drop the exported relational objects and/or AS model manually. To drop the objects, edit the **Power Pivot** model. On the **CONTROL® Model** ribbon, in the **Construction** group, click the arrow on the bottom of the **Drop** button.

| | | Revenue – Variance Power Pivot Model - CONTROL® | | | | | | | | |
|-----------------|--------|---|------------|------------|----------------------|------------------|--------------------|-------|----------------|----------------|
| Data | Review | View | CONTRO | L® Navigat | or CO | NTROL® | View | CONT | ROL® Developer | CONTROL® Model |
| Export | Drop | Object Dat Access Acc | a Storage | Changes | P Universe | H Save | Discard Changes | Close | | |
| Constr Drop All | | Display | | Model | | | | | | |
| | Dro | op Analysis Se | rvices Mod | el Only | | | | | | |

The table below explains the available Drop options:

| Drop command | Used to |
|---|--|
| Drop All | Deletes the relational tables/views and the Analysis Services Model. |
| Drop Analysis Services Model Only | Deletes just the Analysis Services Model. |

The Power Pivot model edit book

Source view definition

The first tab of the edit book allows you to review or customize the primary view of the **Power Pivot** model. If you leave the **Base View** property of the model blank, a new view is created, which is dedicated to the **Power Pivot** model, so you can modify it without affecting any existing reports or processes in your application.





| 8 | <i>5 - 6 -</i> | Ŧ | | | | R | evenue – Variance P | ower Pivot Mod | el - CONTRO | L⊙ | | | | ħ | - | o x |
|--|---|-----------------------------|--|---|---|---|---|----------------|-----------------------|-------------------|-----------|---|------------------------------|-------------------------------|------------|------------------------------|
| e | Home | Insert | Page Layout | Formulas | Data Review | View C | ONTROL® Navigat | or CONTRO |)L® View | CONTROL® | Developer | CONTROL® Model | Add-ins | ♀ Tell me | Sign in | ♀. Share |
| e lass | Revenue – V REVENUE_V Power Pivot Model | /ariance Pe ARANCEP t | OWERPVO Prope | erties Model Pane | Export Drop | Utility Tabula Scripts - Editor Utilities | r Object Data Access Access Maint | Storage Change | s Universe Display | Save Disc Char | ard Close | | | | | ^ |
| | Ŧ | : × | √ <i>f</i> × F | ilters: | | | | | | | | | | | | ¥ |
| 1 2 4 5 7 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 | A Filters: Pages: USD Amou Revenue / Units | e unts not Se Account | B Customer Total Customer Customer Total C aled Scenario Actuals | C Product (Total Product) Data In U Dustomer :: Product Budget | D Time Period (Year 2018) Ower Pivot Total Product :: Tir Forecast | E F | <u>с</u> н | | ĸ | | M | View - Revenue - Dimensions, Bra Custom Organization Adjustment Customer Product Scenario Scenario Customer Time Period Pages Total Customer Total Product Revenue Accts [Ad H Customer Dimension Proper Custom Pro | Variance Power nches, and | r Pivot Filters Filters | id Hoc: SC | X » * ENARIO ACT. * |
| 29 | - • | Sour | ce View Definit | ion Addition | al Views Cal | culation C | ÷ : • | | | | • | Immediate updat | e | | Update | Maximize |

Additional views

If you want data from multiple models or views included in the export, you can add them in the task pane on the **Additional Views** tab. This is particularly useful when using AS because Power BI visualizations can only contain data from one AS model.



You can override the **style**, **anchor dimension**, **materialization behavior** and **protocol properties** of each additional view.

When you export the Power Pivot model





- 1. The primary view processes first
- 2. The additional views process in the sequence they appear.
- 3. For the views following the primary view, if a previously exported dimension is present, CONTROL® evaluates whether the exported relational table/view can be reused. If the previous table contains all the selected members and levels, then no additional dimension table is exported.
- 4. Each view will have its own fact table. This behavior is useful when you are exporting data from multiple models/views that share one or more common dimensions.
- 5. When exported tables are materialized, CONTROL[®] creates foreign key relationships between the fact table(s) and the dimension tables, so that other tools (such as Power BI) can automatically understand how the tables are related.
- 6. When CONTROL[®] builds an AS Tabular model, it automatically creates the relationships between the tables, whether you have exported relational tables or relational views.
- 7. If there are multiple views with shared dimensions the relationships will be created for each fact table.
- 8. Additional tables specified in the Exported tables tab are included when building the AS Tabular model.
- 9. If the additional table(s) is an **AS Query** datasource, then the DAX expression that defines the AS Query will be used to create a calculated table in AS.
- 10. Any relationship overrides defined in the **Exported Tables** tab are then applied on the AS Tabular model.

Note: As of this writing, AS Tabular does not support multi-column foreign key relationships.

Calculation groups

Calculation groups are a concept introduced in SQL Server 2019 Analysis Services that allow you to define one or more sets of measures that you can use with all the other measures in an AS Tabular model.

For example, you may want to have a year-to-date or year-over-year calculation for Sales, Cost, and Profit measures. Instead of defining six new measures to accomplish this, you can add a calculation group with two generic measures – year-to-date and year-over year, and you can use them with all your financial variables.

Refer to the following links for background and a detailed discussion of calculation groups:

- <u>https://www.sqlbi.com/articles/introducing-calculation-groups/</u>
- <u>https://www.sqlbi.com/articles/understanding-calculation-groups/</u>
- <u>https://www.sqlbi.com/articles/understanding-the-application-of-calculation-items/</u>
- <u>https://www.sqlbi.com/articles/understanding-calculation-group-precedence/</u>
- <u>https://www.sqlbi.com/articles/controlling-format-strings-in-calculation-groups/</u>





- <u>https://www.sqlbi.com/articles/using-calculation-groups-to-selectively-replace-measures-in-dax-expressions/</u>
- <u>https://www.sqlbi.com/articles/using-calculation-groups-to-switch-between-dates/</u>
- <u>https://docs.microsoft.com/en-us/analysis-services/tabular-models/calculation-groups?view=sql-server-ver15</u>

A calculation group appears in Power BI as another table. In CONTROL®, you define calculation groups as a **CONTROL-Managed** datasource object in the **Calculation Groups** category. Each record in the datasource table represents a calculation item, or measure.

Here is an example of a **Calculation Group** datasource that computes the Scenario and Time variance calculations:



The following are special characteristics of the **Expression**:

- The **SELECTEDMEASURE()** argument is a placeholder for any measure to which the calculation item is applied.
- The [&Date] argument used in time intelligence calculations will be replaced by the augmented **datetime** column of the time dimension table, for example, **'Time Period'**[FullDate].
- Any remaining keywords will be evaluated in the model scope of the **Power Pivot** model and substituted with by their replacement values. You can see the use of the CURRENT_YEAR keyword in our formula in the screenshot above.

You should put all Calculation Group datasources in a category with its ID **CalculationGroups**. If this category exists, the **Calculation Groups** worksheet will appear in the **Power Pivot** model's edit book (after the **Additional Views** worksheet), which allows you to add calculation groups to the model.

To use calculation groups with **Time Intelligence** functions in a **Power Pivot** model you need to set the **Augment Dimensions** property to **Create a date/time field on Time Dimension** or **Add all fields to all dimensions**.



| Power Pivot Options | | |
|------------------------|--|---|
| Power Pivot Style 🕕 | Dimension and Fact Tables (Star Join) | ~ |
| Power Pivot Anchor | Variable | ۷ |
| Materialization Beh 🕕 | Materialize | v |
| Materialization Protoc | | |
| Table Schema | | |
| Table Name Or Prefix | RevenueVariancePowerPivot | |
| Augment Dimensions | Create a date/time field on Time Dimension | |
| Refresh Behavior | Manual | ~ |

The **FullDate** column is constructed based on the **Date Format** property of the root level of the time dimension in your **Power Pivot model** and hence need to be set to use this augment dimension feature.

| ∃ ↓A Search | | | 3 |
|-------------------|----|-----------------------------|---|
| Identification | | | |
| Name | ١ | Month | |
| ID | () | MTH | |
| Class | | Level | |
| Subclass | ١ | Time | |
| Category | | 800 Public (ID: 800_PUBLIC) | • |
| Description | | | |
| Definition | | | |
| Aggregation | | Sum | × |
| Default Member | | | |
| Is Sorted | | Sorted by ID | ~ |
| Member Display | | NamesOnly | ~ |
| Member ID Type | ١ | VariableLengthCharacter | ~ |
| Member ID Size | | 25 | |
| Member ID Pattern | | / | |
| Display | | | |
| Date Format | | ҮҮҮҮММ 🚩 | |
| Numeric Format | | (None) | ~ |
| Typographic Style | | | |

KCI Computing Inc.





Now, you can add the Calculation Group to the **Power Pivot** model in the **Calculation Groups** worksheet.



You can have any number of Calculation Groups in your model, but if you have more than one you should take care to set the **Precedence** property correctly to determine the order of calculation in AS. Calculation Groups with a higher **precedence** value calculate before those with a lower value (descending order).

The following article provides more details about what to avoid while setting Calculation Group **precedence**.

https://www.sqlbi.com/articles/avoiding-pitfalls-in-calculation-groups-precedence/

| Calculation Item | DAX Expression | | | | | | |
|-------------------------|---|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| Alpha Amount | Calculate the amount for the selected Scenario and Year | | | | | | |
| | VAR AlphaScenario = SELECTEDVALUE('Scenario'[Scenario Name], "Actuals") | | | | | | |
| | VAR SelectedYear = SELECTEDVALUE('Time Period'[Year], "&CURRENT_YEAR") | | | | | | |
| | VAR SelectedRange = SELECTEDVALUE('Time Range'[Time_Range Column], "YR") | | | | | | |
| | VAR Result = IF (SelectedRange="YTD", | | | | | | |
| | CALCULATE(SELECTEDMEASURE(), FILTER('Scenario', 'Scenario'[Scenario Name] = | | | | | | |
| | AlphaScenario), DATESYTD('Time Period'[FullDate])), | | | | | | |
| | CALCULATE(SELECTEDMEASURE(), FILTER('Scenario', 'Scenario'[Scenario Name] = | | | | | | |
| | AlphaScenario), FILTER('Time Period', 'Time Period'[Year]=SelectedYear)) | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | RETURN Result | | | | | | |
| Compare Amount | Calculate the Compare Scenario Amount | | | | | | |
| 1 | VAR AlphaScenario = SELECTEDVALUE('Scenario'[Scenario Name], "Actuals") | | | | | | |
| | VAR ScenarioCompare = SELECTEDVALUE('Scenario Compare'[Scenario Name], | | | | | | |
| | "Forecast") | | | | | | |

Our Sample Calculation Group has four calculation items:





| | VAR SelectedYear = SELECTEDVALUE('Time Period'[Year], "&CURRENT_YEAR") VAR SelectedRange = SELECTEDVALUE('Time Range'[Time_Range Column], "YR") VAR CompareAmount = IF(ScenarioCompare = "PY Actual", IF(SelectedRange = "YTD", CALCULATE(SELECTEDMEASURE(), FILTER('Scenario', 'Scenario'[Scenario Name] = AlphaScenario), DATESYTD(SAMEPERIODLASTYEAR('Time Period'[FullDate]))), |
|--------------|---|
| | CALCULATE(SELECTEDMEASURE(), FILTER('Scenario', 'Scenario'[Scenario Name] = AlphaScenario),SAMEPERIODLASTYEAR('Time Period'[FullDate])) |
| | <pre>//, IF(SelectedRange = "YTD", CALCULATE(SELECTEDMEASURE() EILTER(All('Scenario') 'Scenario'[Scenario Name] =</pre> |
| | ScenarioCompare) DATESYTD('Time Period'[FullDate])) |
| | CALCULATE(SELECTEDMEASURE(), FILTER(All('Scenario'), 'Scenario'[Scenario Name] = |
| | ScenarioCompare)) |
| | |
| | RETURN CompareAmount |
| Variance | Calculate the Variance Amount between Alpha and Compare |
| | VAR AlphaAmount = CALCULATE(SELECTEDMEASURE(), FILTER('Scenario Time |
| | Variance', 'Scenario Time Variance'[PBI - Calc Group - Scenario Time Variance |
| | Measures]="Alpha Amount")) |
| | VAR CompareAmount = CALCULATE(SELECTEDMEASURE(), FILTER('Scenario |
| | Time Variance', 'Scenario Time Variance'[PBI - Calc Group - Scenario Time Variance |
| | Measures]="Compare Amount")) |
| | VAR Result = AlphaAmount - CompareAmount |
| | |
| | RETURN Result |
| Variance Pct | RETURN ResultCalculate the Variance Pct between Alpha and Compare |
| Variance Pct | RETURN Result Calculate the Variance Pct between Alpha and Compare VAR AlphaAmount = CALCULATE(SELECTEDMEASURE(), FILTER('Scenario Time |
| Variance Pct | RETURN Result Calculate the Variance Pct between Alpha and Compare VAR AlphaAmount = CALCULATE(SELECTEDMEASURE(), FILTER('Scenario Time Variance', 'Scenario Time Variance'[PBI - Calc Group - Scenario Time Variance |
| Variance Pct | RETURN ResultCalculate the Variance Pct between Alpha and Compare VAR AlphaAmount = CALCULATE(SELECTEDMEASURE(), FILTER('Scenario Time Variance', 'Scenario Time Variance'[PBI - Calc Group - Scenario Time Variance Measures]="Alpha Amount")) |
| Variance Pct | RETURN Result Calculate the Variance Pct between Alpha and Compare VAR AlphaAmount = CALCULATE(SELECTEDMEASURE(), FILTER('Scenario Time Variance', 'Scenario Time Variance'[PBI - Calc Group - Scenario Time Variance Measures]="Alpha Amount")) VAR CompareAmount = CALCULATE(SELECTEDMEASURE(), FILTER('Scenario |
| Variance Pct | RETURN Result Calculate the Variance Pct between Alpha and Compare VAR AlphaAmount = CALCULATE(SELECTEDMEASURE(), FILTER('Scenario Time Variance', 'Scenario Time Variance'[PBI - Calc Group - Scenario Time Variance Measures]="Alpha Amount")) VAR CompareAmount = CALCULATE(SELECTEDMEASURE(), FILTER('Scenario Time Variance', 'Scenario Time Variance'[PBI - Calc Group - Scenario Time Variance' Time Variance', 'Scenario Time Variance'[PBI - Calc Group - Scenario Time Variance Measured="Compare Amount")) |
| Variance Pct | RETURN Result Calculate the Variance Pct between Alpha and Compare VAR AlphaAmount = CALCULATE(SELECTEDMEASURE(), FILTER('Scenario Time Variance', 'Scenario Time Variance'[PBI - Calc Group - Scenario Time Variance Measures]="Alpha Amount")) VAR CompareAmount = CALCULATE(SELECTEDMEASURE(), FILTER('Scenario Time Variance', 'Scenario Time Variance'[PBI - Calc Group - Scenario Time Variance Measures]="Compare Amount")) VAR VarianceAmount = AlphaAmount = CompareAmount |
| Variance Pct | RETURN Result Calculate the Variance Pct between Alpha and Compare VAR AlphaAmount = CALCULATE(SELECTEDMEASURE(), FILTER('Scenario Time Variance', 'Scenario Time Variance'[PBI - Calc Group - Scenario Time Variance Measures]="Alpha Amount")) VAR CompareAmount = CALCULATE(SELECTEDMEASURE(), FILTER('Scenario Time Variance', 'Scenario Time Variance'[PBI - Calc Group - Scenario Time Variance Measures]="Compare Amount")) VAR VarianceAmount = AlphaAmount - CompareAmount VAR VarianceAmount = AlphaAmount - CompareAmount |

The Calculation Group uses a mix of relational tables from the **Power Pivot** model (Scenario and Time Period), additional tables (Scenario Compare, Time Range) and Calculation items within the Calculation Group.

The intent is to produce reports where you select a scenario and then select another scenario with which to compare your data. The option of comparison of YTD or Total year is also part of the calculations.

Here is how the Calculation Group appears in Power BI after exporting the **Power Pivot** model:







Note: Calculation Groups are only relevant for **Power Pivot** models that you export to Analysis Services, but are useable in both Power BI and Excel pivot tables.

Exported Tables

Exported Tables tab in the **Power Pivot** model edit book allows the addition and customization of the set of data sources exported to the AS model.

Data sources meeting the following criteria are included in the available objects tree, and may be added to the AS model:

- Data sources which have a relational table or view
- AS query data sources
- Data sources which have their **Analysis Services Usage** property defined as either **Used** only for AS or **Used for both AS and non-AS**



| 4 Content | | |
|-------------------------------------|-----------------------------|--------|
| Has Access Roles | | |
| Has Attribute Values | \checkmark | |
| Has Codes | | |
| Has Hierarchy Rollups | \checkmark | |
| Has Level Members | \checkmark | |
| Has Model Data | \checkmark | |
| Has User Info | | |
| Analysis Services Usage | Not used for AS 🗸 | |
| Processing | Not used for AS | |
| Keep Login | Used only for AS | \sim |
| Analysis Services Usage | Used for both AS and non-AS | |
| Determines if this data source is u | sed for Analysis Services. | |

• The **Exported Tables** task pane contains the relational tables of the base and additional views of the **Power Pivot** model in addition to the data sources explicitly added by you.

| D Exported Tables for Model - Revenue - Variance Power Piv | ot | | | | | |
|--|------------------------|--|--|--|--|--|
| Select Exported Tables | | | | | | |
| Search | | | | | | |
| ▲ SQL Query | | | | | | |
| ▷ 200 Overhead | | | | | | |
| ▷ 300 Payroll | | | | | | |
| × | **** | | | | | |
| Data Source | Content | | | | | |
| Revenue - Variance Power Pivot - Information | Information | | | | | |
| Revenue – Variance Power Pivot - Fact | Fact | | | | | |
| Revenue – Variance Power Pivot - Scenario | Dimension(Scenario) | | | | | |
| Revenue – Variance Power Pivot - Adjustment | Dimension(Adjustment) | | | | | |
| Revenue – Variance Power Pivot - Customer | Dimension(Customer) | | | | | |
| Revenue – Variance Power Pivot - Product | Dimension(Product) | | | | | |
| Revenue – Variance Power Pivot - Time Period | Dimension(Time Period) | | | | | |
| Scale | Additional Table | | | | | |
| PBI - Scenario Compare | Additional Table | | | | | |
| PBI - Time Range | Additional Table | | | | | |

- Data sources which are defined by the **Power Pivot** models' view(s) cannot be removed.
- If an **AS Query** data source is added to the model, the DAX expression that defines the AS Query will be used to create a calculated table in AS.

Following is the example of an **AS Query** datasource in our **Power Pivot** model.



| | E V Search | | 1 | × | ent | C Customer (Total Customer) | Produ | ct duct) | Revenue / | Account | н | |
|----------------------------|-----------------------------|-------|----------------------------|--------------------------------|--------------------|------------------------------------|-----------|-------------|-----------|---------|------|-----|
| | Name | | DRI - Scenario Compare | | enorti | ng Rev - PBI Calc G | roup Test | , | | , | | |
| ► Attribute | ID | 1 | PBI_CMP_SCN | KC Edit Text | porta | ing free i bi cuic d | ioup rest | | | | | × |
| ⊿ 🖧 Datasource | Class | | Datasource | | | | | | | | | |
| External | Subclass | (i) | AS Query | Datasource PBI | - Scen | ario Compare | Property: | Gene | ratedSQ | L | | |
| CONTROL-Managed | Category | | 800 Public (ID: 800_PUBLI | UNION | | | | | | | | |
| SQL Query Generated SQL | Description | | Copy of object template: | DATATABLE | | | | | | | | |
| AS Query | 4 Definition | | | ("Seg Scenario | ". Inte | eger. | | | | | | |
| Property | Data Base | | | "Scenario_Key | ", Inte | eger, | | | | | | |
| Dimension | Data Table | | CNTADM.DSrce_PBI_CMF | "Scenario", S "Scenario Nam | tring, e", Str | ring, | | | | | | |
| ▷ 몸 Hierarchy | AS Query | | UNION | { {0, 1, "PV A | ст", " | PV Actual"} | | | | | | |
| Level | Table Creation | | Create Dynamically | } | . , . | , we can be | | | | | | |
| D 🧊 Model | Content | | Create Dynamically |), SELECTCOLUMNS (| | | | | | | | |
| ▲ interface | AS Queru | | | 'Scenario', | | ananio'[Sec Scen | aniol | | | | | |
| D Dook | For SOL Ouery sources: the | SOL e | xpression which defines th | "Scenario_Key | ", 'Sce | enario'[Scenario | _Key], | | | | | |
| ▷ ▼ Filter | For AS Query sources: the I | MDX o | or DAX expression which de | "Scenario", ' | Scenari e", 'So | io'[Scenario], cenario'[Scenari | o Name] | | | | | |
| Favorite Objects | | | |) | | | - | | | | | |
| Recent Objects | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Deadu | | | | | | | | | | OK | Cano | tel |

Calculated table created in the AS model.

| Σ 🗄 🏯 🚱 🖾 🖾 🖽 💱 🖸 | Expression Editor Advanced Scripting | | | | | | | |
|---|---|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| | ✓ × Pax - 2 P ≦b Image: Property: Expression 'Scenario: Compare': = 1 UNION 2 (3 DATATABLE 4 (5 "Scenario" | | | | | | | |
| > III Fact > III Scenario > III Scenario III Scenario (Servario) III Scenario (Key) III Scenario Name > III There Range > III There Range > III Adjustment > III Customer > III Product | <pre>6 "Scemario Key", Integer, 7 "Scemario", String, 8 "Scemario Name", String, 9 { 10 {0, 1, "PY_ACT", "PY Actual"} 11 } 12), 13 SELECTCOLUMNS (14 'Scemario', 15 "Seq_Scemario", 'Scemario'[Seq_Scemario],</pre> | | | | | | | |
| > 3 Time Period > ∰ Information > 1∰ contain Time Variance ☐ Translations | Basic Description Hidden Name Metadata Annotations DAX/dentifier Error Message Etended Properties Object Type | Copy of object template: Dynamic AS Query False Scenario Compare 0 annotations "Scenario Compare" 0 extended properties Calculated Table | | | | | | |

• The AS Table name(s) of the data sources can be overridden more easily in this task pane:



| D Exported Tables for Model - Re | evenue – variance Power Pivot | | | | | | |
|----------------------------------|-------------------------------------|--------|--|--|--|--|--|
| Select Exported Tables | | * | | | | | |
| Search | | ρ | | | | | |
| ▲ SQL Query | | ^ | | | | | |
| ▷ 200 Overhead | | | | | | | |
| × | | ٥ | | | | | |
| Data Source | Content | ^ | | | | | |
| Revenue – Variance Power Pivot | Dimension(Product) | | | | | | |
| Revenue – Variance Power Pivot | Dimension(Time Period) | | | | | | |
| Scale | Additional Table | | | | | | |
| PBI - Scenario Compare | Additional Table | | | | | | |
| PBI - Time Range | Additional Table | \sim | | | | | |
| < | > | | | | | | |
| Exported Table Item Prope | erties | ¥ | | | | | |
| I∃ ↓A Search | | × | | | | | |
| Data Source 👔 | PBI - Scenario Compare (ID: PBI_(🔹 | - | | | | | |
| SQL Table Name | CNTADM.DSrce_PBI_CMP_SCN | | | | | | |
| AS Table Name | Scenario Compare | | | | | | |

In our **Revenue - Variance Power Pivot** model we added an additional datasource **Scale** with an aim to provide users the ability to see values with their choice of scaling.

| Scale | | | | | | | | | | | | |
|--------------------------------------|--------|----------------------------|----------|------------------|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| Prototype view for Data Sources View | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Updating: Clear and Insert Filter: | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Seq_Column 🔻 Scale 🔻 Denominator 🔻 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 1 1. No Scaling 1.00 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | 1 | 1. No Scali | ng | 1.00 | | | | | | | | |
| | 1 2 | 1. No Scalii 2. Thousan | ng ds | 1.00 1,000.00 | | | | | | | | |

We created DAX Measures in the **Fact** table to calculate the data to be shown dynamically based on the choice of scaling made by the user in Power BI.



| DataType | Size | Alias | NumericFormat | ASUsage | ASDefinition | DisplayFolder |
|----------|------|-------------------------------------|---------------|------------------|---|---------------|
| Integer | | SCENARIO_Key | | Base - Automatic | | |
| Integer | | EXMP_ADJ_Key | | Base - Automatic | | |
| Integer | | EXMP_CUST_Key | | Base - Automatic | | |
| Integer | 1 | EXMP_PROD_Key | | Base - Automatic | | |
| Integer | | TIMEPERIOD_Key | | Base - Automatic | | |
| Float | | Units Amount | (9,999) | Base - Hidden | | Others |
| Float | | Price | (9,999.99) | Measure | DIVIDE([Gross Sales], [Units]) | Others |
| Float | 1 | Gross Sales Amount | (9,999) | Base - Hidden | | Others |
| Float | | Sales Discount Amount | (9,999) | Base - Hidden | | Others |
| Float | 1 | Sales Returns and Allowances Amount | (9,999) | Base - Hidden | | Others |
| Float | | Shipping Charges Amount | (9,999) | Base - Hidden | | Others |
| Float | | Other Incomes Amount | (9,999) | Base - Hidden | | Others |
| Float | | Net Revenue Amount | (9,999) | Base - Hidden | | Others |
| Float | 25 | Total Sales | (9,999) | Measure | CALCULATE([Gross Sales], ALL('Fact')) | Key Measures |
| Float | | % of Total | 99.99% | Measure | DIVIDE([Gross Sales], [Total Sales]) | Key Measures |
| Float | | Scale Denominator | (9,999) | Measure | SELECTEDVALUE (Scale[Denominator Column], 1) | Others |
| Float | | Units | (9,999) | Measure | DIVIDE (SUMX (Fact, [Units Amount]), [Scale Denominator]) | Key Measures |
| Float | 1 | Gross Sales | (9,999) | Measure | DIVIDE (SUMX (Fact, [Gross Sales Amount]), [Scale Denominator]) | Key Measures |
| Float | | Sales Discount | (9,999) | Measure | DIVIDE (SUMX (Fact, [Sales Discount Amount]), [Scale Denominator]) | Key Measures |
| Float | 1 | Sales Returns and Allowances | (9,999) | Measure | DIVIDE (SUMX (Fact, [Sales Returns and Allowances Amount]), [Scale Denominator]) | Key Measures |
| Float | | Shipping Charges | (9,999) | Measure | DIVIDE (SUMX (Fact, [Shipping Charges Amount]), [Scale Denominator]) | Key Measures |
| Float | 1 | Other Incomes | (9,999) | Measure | DIVIDE (SUMX (Fact, [Other Incomes Amount]), [Scale Denominator]) | Key Measures |
| Float | 1 | Net Revenue | (9,999) | Measure | DIVIDE (SUMX (Fact, [Net Revenue Amount]), [Scale Denominator]) | Key Measures |

| 4 | Scaling | ~ |
|---|---------------|--------|
| | 1. No Scaling | \sim |

| PBI - Calc Group - Scenario Time Variance Measures | Alpha Amou | nt | Compare An | nount | Variance | | Variance Pct | | |
|--|------------|-------------|------------|-------------|-----------|-------------|--------------|-------------|--|
| Country Name | Units | Gross Sales | Units | Gross Sales | Units | Gross Sales | Units | Gross Sales | |
| Canada | 1,211,884 | 6,218,290 | 1,091,165 | 5,749,068 | 120,719 | 469,222 | 11.06% | 8.16% | |
| France | 3,598,936 | 18,353,126 | 3,240,803 | 16,968,227 | 358,132 | 1,384,898 | 11.05% | 8.16% | |
| Italy | 3,543,862 | 17,900,508 | 3,191,765 | 16,549,764 | 352,097 | 1,350,744 | 11.03% | 8.16% | |
| Japan | 3,323,570 | 16,090,040 | 2,995,612 | 14,875,910 | 327,957 | 1,214,129 | 10.95% | 8.16% | |
| Spain | 3,378,643 | 16,542,657 | 3,044,651 | 15,294,374 | 333,992 | 1,248,283 | 10.97% | 8.16% | |
| Taiwan | 3,488,789 | 17,447,891 | 3,142,727 | 16,131,301 | 346,062 | 1,316,591 | 11.01% | 8.16% | |
| Thailand | 3,433,716 | 16,995,274 | 3,093,689 | 15,712,837 | 340,027 | 1,282,437 | 10.99% | 8.16% | |
| United States | 8,593,641 | 40,693,977 | 7,748,557 | 37,623,273 | 845,084 | 3,070,704 | 10.91% | 8.16% | |
| Total | 30,573,040 | 150,241,763 | 27,548,970 | 138,904,754 | 3,024,070 | 11,337,009 | 10.98% | 8.16% | |

| | | | | | | | | | | Scaling |
|--|---------|-------------|--------|-------------|---------|-------------|----------|-------------|---|---------------------|
| | | | | | | | | | × | 2. Thousands \sim |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| PBI - Calc Group - Scenario Time Variance Measures | Alpha A | mount | Compar | e Amount | Varianc | e | Variance | Pct | | |
| Country Name | Units | Gross Sales | Units | Gross Sales | Units | Gross Sales | Units | Gross Sales | | |
| Canada | 1,212 | 6,218 | 1,091 | 5,749 | 121 | 469 | 11.06% | 8.16% | | |
| France | 3,599 | 18,353 | 3,241 | 16,968 | 358 | 1,385 | 11.05% | 8.16% | | |
| Italy | 3,544 | 17,901 | 3,192 | 16,550 | 352 | 1,351 | 11.03% | 8.16% | | |
| Japan | 3,324 | 16,090 | 2,996 | 14,876 | 328 | 1,214 | 10.95% | 8.16% | | |
| Spain | 3,379 | 16,543 | 3,045 | 15,294 | 334 | 1,248 | 10.97% | 8.16% | | |
| Taiwan | 3,489 | 17,448 | 3,143 | 16,131 | 346 | 1,317 | 11.01% | 8.16% | | |
| Thailand | 3,434 | 16,995 | 3,094 | 15,713 | 340 | 1,282 | 10.99% | 8.16% | | |
| United States | 8,594 | 40,694 | 7,749 | 37,623 | 845 | 3,071 | 10.91% | 8.16% | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |

There are a lot of creative ways you can enhance your reports in Power BI. You can refer to the following to get started.

https://www.daxpatterns.com/parameter-table/ https://www.bluegranite.com/blog/disconnected-table-power-bi https://radacad.com/change-the-column-or-measure-value-in-a-power-bi-visual-by-selectionof-the-slicer-parameter-table-pattern

KCI Computing Inc.





Relationship Overrides

Relationships between tables in an AS Tabular model can be customized using the **Relationship Overrides** property of the exported table. The export process will automatically define the relationships between dimension and fact tables, and if any of those relationships is not desired, you can change them. The convention is noted below – note that the syntax uses AS table and column names – NOT relational table and column names.

The **PBI – Actual Analysis** Power Pivot model is based on a view on the **EXMP – Financial Statements** model and has an additional view on the **Revenue – Reporting** model.

When the model is exported the relationships in AS Tabular model are defined as follows:



Our Power BI report has a Slicer on **Country** field from the **Department** table. If you observe the two screenshots below changing the country in the slicer from United States to Japan has NO impact on the Gross Sales by Product Group visualization as it is based on Revenue model and there is no relationship between the **Revenue** Fact table and **Department** table.





Within CONTROL[®] these two models are logically related based on the common level **Legal Entity** which is available in both Customer and Department dimensions and data transfer between these two models happens at this common level. Since the views used in the **Power Pivot** model have branches having **Legal Entity** at the lowest level, we could link the two models. Using the **Relationship Overrides** property we remove the relationship between the Revenue Fact table and Customer table and add a new relationship between the Revenue Fact table and the Department table.

KCI Computing Inc.



| Data Source | | Content |
|-------------------------------------|--|---|
| PB - ctul nlyss - (PB - FS ctul nly | yss) nformton | Information |
| PB - ctul nlyss - (PB - FS ctul nly | yss) Fct | Fact |
| PB - ctul nlyss - (PB - Rvnu ctul | nlyss) Fct | Fact |
| 00 1 1 (00 CO 1 1 | 10 | D |
| Exported Table Item Prop | perties | **** |
| Content | Fact | |
| Storage Type | Table | |
| Key Columns | SCENARIO_Key, EXMP_CUST_Key, EXMP | PROD_Key, TIMEPERIOD_Key |
| Defined Relationships | SCENARIO_Key <cntadm.pbiactualana< th=""><th>lysis_PBI_FSACTUALANALYSIS_SCENARIO.SCENARIO_Key, EXMP_CL</th></cntadm.pbiactualana<> | lysis_PBI_FSACTUALANALYSIS_SCENARIO.SCENARIO_Key, EXMP_CL |
| Relationship Overrides | -EXMP_CUST_Key<'Customer'[EXMP_CU | JST_Key], +EXMP_CUST_Key<'Department'[EXMP_DEPT_Key] |

Since relationship overrides have an impact only on AS Tabular model you need to export the Power Pivot model using **Export > Update > All** to preserve the customization during the export.

Now, the Gross Sales by Product Group visualization reacts to the selection on the Slicer!







Datasources

Once you have run the export and reopen the edit book, you will see a worksheet in the workbook for every relational table or view that was exported. Each worksheet corresponds to a hidden, **CONTROL-Managed** datasource dedicated to the **Power Pivot** model.

| le | Hor | me Insert | Page L | .ayout | Formulas | Data | Review | View CC | NTROL® Navig | ator CO | NTROL® View | CONTROL® Deve | eloper C | ONTR | OL® Model | Add-ins | ♀ Tell m | e Sign in | ∕A_ Sha | are |
|-----------|-----------------------------|--|------------|-------------|-------------------|--------------|---------|--------------------------------|-----------------------------|------------|------------------|-------------------------|----------------|------|--------------|-----------|---------------|-------------|----------|--------|
| e lass | Revenu REVENI Power I | ie – Variance Po UE_VARANCEP Pivot | wer Pivot | Propert | ies Model Pane | Export | Drop Uf | ility Tabular ipts ▼ Editor | Object Data Access Acces | Storage Ch | onanges Universe | Save Discard Changes | Close | | | | | | | |
| | N | lodel info | | Propert | ies Show/Hid | e Construc | tion | Utilities | Mai | ntenance | Display | Model | | | | | | | | ~ |
| 2 | A | B B | nco Pou | ior Pivot | C | | D | | F | G | Н | 1 | | | D Datasource | - Revenue | – Variance Po | wer Pivot - | Fact 🕽 | × » |
| 3 | Powe | er BI Export Ta | ble View V | View | | | | | | | | | | | Columns | | | | | |
| 4 | Upda | ating: Clear and | Insert Fil | ter: | | | | | | | | | | | Table: CN | | | | | 0 |
| 6 | | ID | | | Description | 1 | DataTyp | e | Alias | nument | ASUsage | ASDefini | ition | | | | venue vun | ancer own | | - |
| 7 | SCEN | IARIO_Key | K | Key colum | n SCENARIO | | Integer | SCENARIO | Key | | Base - Automatio | | | | + × ^ | * | | Find | | ~ |
| 8 | EXM | P_CUST_Key | K | (ey colum | in EXMP_CUST | | Integer | EXMP_CUS | F_Key | | Base - Automatio | : | | | Column | Alias | | AS | Usage | ^ |
| 9 | EXMI | P_PROD_Key | | (ey colum | IN EXMP_PROD | | Integer | EXMP_PRO | D_Key | | Base - Automatic | | | | SCENARIO K | ey SCEN | VARIO Key | Bas | e - Autc | |
| 11 | Units | PERIOD_Rey | ŝ | Sum of Un | in TIMEPERIOD | | Float | Units | D_Key | 79 999) | Base - Automatic | | | | EXMP CUST | Key FXM | D CLIST Key | Rac | e - Auto | |
| 12 | Price | | F | Ratio (IGro | oss Sales1. (Unit | s]) | Float | Price | | (9,999,99) | Measure | DIVIDE([Gross Sal | les], [Units]) | | EXIMP_COST_ | Ney EXIVI | P_COST_Key | 005 | e - Auto | |
| 13 | Gross | sSales | Ť | Festing to | see if I can sav | e | Float | Gross Sales | | (9,999) | Base - Automatio | : | | | EXMP_PROD | _Key EXM | IP_PROD_Key | Bas | e - Auto | |
| 14 | Sales | Discount | S | Sum of Sal | les Discount | | Float | Sales Disco | unt | (9,999) | Base - Automatio | | | | TIMEPERIOD | _Key TIME | EPERIOD_Key | Bas | e - Autc | |
| 15 | Sales | ReturnsandAllo | wances S | Sum of Sal | les Returns and | Allowances | Float | Sales Return | ns and Allowance | s (9,999) | Base - Automatio | | | | Units | Units | s | Bas | e - Auto | |
| 16 | Shipp | pingCharges | S | Sum of Shi | ipping Charges | 5 | Float | Shipping Cl | narges | (9,999) | Base - Automatic | | | | Price | Price | | Me | asure | |
| 10 | Note | rincomes | 3 | Sum of Ma | t Powenue | | Float | Other Incor | nes | (9,999) | Base - Automatic | | | - | 0.00 | ~ | | | | \sim |
| 10 | INELK | evenue | | sum of ive | a Revenue | | FIOAL | ivet Kevenu | e | (9,999) | Dase - Automatic | • | | | < | | | | > | |
| 20 | - | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | ~ |
| 21 | 1 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | Column Pr | | | | | Ŷ |
| 22 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | earch | | | | v . |
| 23 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | • • 2 · | curen | | | | |
| 24 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | Identificat | ion | | | | ^ |
| 25 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | Column N | lame | SCEI | NARIO_Key | | |
| 27 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | Descriptio | 'n | Kev | column SCE | NARIO | |
| 28 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | 4 Definition | | | | | |
| 30 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | Dennidon | | | _ | _ | |
| 31 | - | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | _ |
| | | Time | Period | Inform | nation Fa | ct (4 |) | | : • | | + | - | Þ | | Immediate | update | | Update | Maxim | iize |

Typically, you do not need to modify the properties of these tables or their columns. However, if you are exporting to Analysis Services, you may want to review and customize the following:

KCI Computing Inc.





-

- **Description** defines the tool tip for the column in Power Bl. It is the description defined in the level object's **Description** property.
- Alias is the name of the column or measure that will appear in Power BI. By default, CONTROL[®] uses level and dimension names as Alias for columns in the dimension tables during the export to Analysis Services. However, if you wish you can override the names by updating the Alias field. CONTROL[®] will automatically remove or replace any special characters not supported by AS.

For our sample **Power Pivot** model, the Customer dimensions' **Alias** are populated by default as follows during the export.

| ID | Description | DataType | Size | Alias NumericFo | rmat ASUsage |
|----------------------------|-------------|----------|------|----------------------------|------------------|
| EXMP_CUST_Key | | Integer | | EXMP_CUST_Key | Base - Automatic |
| EXMP_CUST_MemberID | | VarChar | 50 | Customer MemberID | Base - Automatio |
| Seq_EXMP_CUST | | Integer | [| Seq_EXMP_CUST | Base - Automatio |
| EXMP_TOT_CUST | | VarChar | 25 | Total Customer | Base - Automatio |
| EXMP_TOT_CUST_Name | | VarChar | 100 | Total Customer Name | Base - Automatio |
| EXMP_REG | | VarChar | 25 | Region | Base - Automatio |
| EXMP_REG_Name | | VarChar | 100 | Region Name | Base - Automatio |
| EXMP_CNTRY | | VarChar | 25 | Country | Base - Automatio |
| EXMP_CNTRY_Name | | VarChar | 100 | Country Name | Base - Automatio |
| EXMP_LE | | VarChar | 25 | Legal Entity | Base - Automati |
| EXMP_LE_Name | | VarChar | 100 | Legal Entity Name | Base - Automati |
| EXMP_CUST | | VarChar | 25 | Customer | Base - Automatio |
| EXMP_CUST_Name | | VarChar | 100 | Customer Name | Base - Automatio |
| Level_ID | | VarChar | 25 | Level_ID | Base - Automatio |
| Depth_EXMP_CUST | | Integer | | Depth_EXMP_CUST | Base - Automatio |
| ParentKey_EXMP_CUST | | Integer | | ParentKey_EXMP_CUST | Base - Automatio |
| FormulaDepth_EXMP_CUST | | Integer | | FormulaDepth_EXMP_CUST | Base - Automatio |
| FormulaParentKey_EXMP_CUST | | Integer | | FormulaParentKey_EXMP_CUST | Base - Automatio |
| FormulaType_EXMP_CUST | | Integer | | FormulaType_EXMP_CUST | Base - Automatic |

and they appear in Power BI as follows:



| 🔍 🏢 🛛 Cu | stomer |
|------------------------|----------------------------|
| □ | A - Total Customer |
| | Country |
| | Country Name |
| | Customer |
| | Customer MemberID |
| | Customer Name |
| | FormulaDepth_EXMP_CUST |
| | FormulaParentKey_EXMP_CUST |
| | FormulaType_EXMP_CUST |
| | Legal Entity |
| | Legal Entity Name |
| | Region |
| | Region Name |
| | Total Customer |
| | Total Customer Name |

In rare cases where you override the **Alias** you need to use **Export > Update > All** to export your data and meta-data while keeping the customizations.

 Numeric Format is the numeric style used in tabular displays in Power BI. If you anchor the fact table on a variable or custom dimension, then the member's numeric format from the dimension defines the Numeric Format. If the fact table is unanchored or anchored on a different dimension, a default format is applied.

A new optional level **AS Formats (ID = ASFORMATS)** can be defined to define explicit formats that are usable directly in AS/Power BI. The **AS Formats** level must have numeric ID's and the ID's should have a minimum value of 1000, so as not to conflict with existing formats (which must still be available to support variables, custom dimensions, and existing data sources). Care should be taken that the two lists (**KCI_BrowserFormats** and **ASFormats**) don't intersect.



AS Formats (Level)

K

Prototype object view (Dynamic) View

Updating: Clear and Insert Filter:

| ID | Name | Description |
|------|-------------------|-------------|
| 1000 | Analysis Services | |
| 1001 | ###0 | |
| 1002 | #,##0 | |
| 1003 | #,##0.0 | |
| 1004 | #,##0.00 | |
| 1005 | #,##0.000 | |
| 1006 | #,##0.0000 | |
| 1007 | #,##0 % | |
| 1008 | #,##0.0 % | |
| 1009 | #,##0.00 % | |
| 1010 | \$ #,##0 | |
| 1011 | \$ #,##0.0 | |
| 1012 | \$ #,##0.00 | |
| 1013 | \$ #,##0.000 | |
| 1014 | \$ #,##0.0000 | |
| | | |

| | Α | В | С | D | Е | F | G | H 🔺 | | D Datasource - Reve | nue – Variance Power Pivot - | Fact 🗙 | < |
|----|---|---|--------------------------------|----------|------|------------------------------|----------------|---------------------------|---|---------------------|------------------------------|--------------|----------|
| 2 | | Revenue – Variance Po Power BI Export Table View | wer Pivot - Fact | | | | | | 1 | Columns | | | • |
| 4 | | Updating: Clear and Insert F | ilter: | | | | | | | Table: CNTADM | I.RevenueVariancePow | erPivot_Fact | ٥ |
| 6 | | ID | Description | DataType | Size | Alias | NumericFormat | ASUsage | | + Y A Y | | Find | 0 |
| 7 | | SCENARIO_Key | Key column SCENARIO | Integer | | SCENARIO_Key | | Base - Automatic | | 1 ~ … · | 1 | 1 010 | <u> </u> |
| 8 | | EXMP_CUST_Key | Key column EXMP_CUST | Integer | | EXMP_CUST_Key | | Base - Automatic | | Column | Alias | AS Usage | ^ |
| 9 | | EXMP_PROD_Key | Key column EXMP_PROD | Integer | | EXMP_PROD_Key | | Base - Automatic | | SCENIARIO Key | SCENARIO Key | Rase - Auton | |
| 10 | | TIMEPERIOD_Key | Key column TIMEPERIOD | Integer | | TIMEPERIOD_Key | | Base - Automatic | | Section and they | State and they | Buse Maton | - |
| 10 | | Units | Sum of Units | Float | | Units | (9,999) | Base - Automatic | | EXMP_CUST_Key | EXMP_CUST_Key | Base - Auton | |
| 12 | | Price | Katio ([Gross Sales], [Units]) | Float | | Price Course College | (9,999.99) | Measure Dece Automotio | | EXMP_PROD_Key | EXMP_PROD_Key | Base - Auton | |
| 15 | | Grossbales | Lesting to see if I can save | Float | | Gross sales | (9,999) | Base - Automatic | | TIMEDERIOD Key | TIMEDERIOD Kay | Race - Auton | |
| 14 | | SalesDiscount | Sum of Sales Discount | Float | | Sales Discount | (9,999) | Base - Automatic | | TIMEFERIOD_Rey | TIMEFERIOD_Rey | base - Auton | |
| 16 | | SalesKetumsanuAllowances | Sum of Shipping Chappen | Float | | Sales Returns and Allowances | (9,999) | Base - Automatic | | Units | Units | Base - Auton | |
| 17 | | OtherIncomer | Sum of Other Incomer | Float | | Other Incomer | (9,999) | Base - Automatic | | Price | Price | Measure | |
| 18 | | NetRevenue | Sum of Net Revenue | Float | | Net Revenue | # ##0 | - se - Automatic | | 0.01 | C < C | | ~ |
| 19 | | | | Tiour | | | SIL-9 999 99 | | | < | | > | |
| 20 | | | | | | Style | Suppress Zeros | ~ | | | | | ~ |
| 21 | | | | | | NumericForma | 9999 | | | Column Propert | | | Ŷ |
| 22 | | | | | | L | ###0 | P | | | | | |
| 23 | | | | | | | #,##0 | | | I= V? Search | | | × |
| 24 | | | | | | | #,##0.0 | | | 4 Islandfilandian | | | |
| 25 | | | | | | | #,##0.00 | <u> </u> | | - identification | | | |

The dimension tables contain columns for all the levels related to the dimension branch in the CONTROL® view. Following additional columns are added to the materialized exported dimension tables to help create complex DAX expressions needed to handle parent-child hierarchies especially the ones related to the Financial Statement accounts/variables.

| Column | Description |
|-----------|---|
| Depth | Depth of the member in the hierarchy. 1 for topmost level and incremental for each lower level. |
| ParentKey | Member key of the Parent to which the current member reports. |





| FormulaDepth | Depth of the member based on formula dependency. |
|--------------------|---|
| FormulaParentKey | Member key of the Parent based on formula dependency. |
| FormulaType | 0 - No formula 1 - Simple sum 2 - Addition and subtraction 3 - Simple ratio 4 - Complex |
| VarianceConvention | Account Convention used mainly for Variance calculation: 1 for Revenue -1 for Cost 0 for neither |

Following screenshots show the Account hierarchy in CONTROL® and how the exported metadata in the dimension relational table gets the values for the additional columns described above.

| EXMP_FS_SUMMARY_ID | EXMP_FS_DETAIL_ID | Name | Direct Logic |
|--------------------|-------------------|------------------------------------|---|
| 100_FTE | | Full Time Equivalent | |
| 600_PAY | 6010 | Base Compensation | |
| 600_PAY | 6015 | Overtime | |
| 600_PAY | 6020 | Employee Other Compensation | |
| 600 PAY | 6030 | Payroll Tax Expense | |
| 600 PAY | 6040 | Employee Benefit, Health Insurance | |
| 600 PAY | | Total Employee Compensation | SUM(R6010:R6040)'Auto-Generated Formula |
| 699 OHX | | Total Overhead Expenses | 600 PAY+610 T E+620 SSV+630 COM+640 FSH+650 OCC+660 MTN+670 INS+680 UTL+691 DPR+692 OEX |
| 699 OHX PCT | | OH Exp as a % of Revenue | 699 OHX/400 REV |
| 700 OI | | Operating income | 550 GM-699 OHX |
| 700 01 0 CT | | Ol as a % of Revenue | 700 OL/400 REV |

| FS - Summary | FS - Summary Name 💌 | FS - Det 🔻 | FS - Detail Name 🛛 👻 | Dept 🗸 | ParentKe 🔻 | FormulaDep 🔻 | FormulaParentKe 🔻 | FormulaTyp 🔻 | VarianceConvention 💌 |
|--------------------|-----------------------------|------------|------------------------------------|--------|------------|--------------|-------------------|--------------|----------------------|
| 83274 691_DPR | Depreciation & Amortization | | | 1 | | 4 | 83310 | 1 | -1 |
| 83275 692_OEX | Other Expenses | 1 | | 1 | | 4 | 83310 | 1 | -1 |
| 83276 600_PAY | Total Employee Compensation | 6010 | Base Compensation | 2 | 83265 | 4 | 83265 | | -1 |
| 83277 600_PAY | Total Employee Compensation | 6020 | Employee Other Compensation | 2 | 83265 | 4 | 83265 | | -1 |
| 83278 600_PAY | Total Employee Compensation | 6030 | Payroll Tax Expense | 2 | 83265 | 4 | 83265 | | -1 |
| 83279 600_PAY | Total Employee Compensation | 6040 | Employee Benefit, Health Insurance | 2 | 83265 | 4 | 83265 | | -1 |
| 83310 699_OHX | Total Overhead Expenses | | | 1 | | 4 | 83312 | 1 | -1 |
| 83311 699_OHX_PCT | OH Exp as a % of Revenue | | | 1 | | 1 | | 3 | -1 |
| 83312 700_OI | Operating income | | | 1 | | 3 | 83316 | 2 | -1 |
| 83313 700_OI_PCT | OI as a % of Revenue | - | | 1 | | 1 | | 3 | -1 |
| 83314 800_OTH_INC | Other Income/(Expenses) | | | 1 | | 3 | 83316 | 1 | 1 |
| 83315 870_INTEREST | Interest Income/(Expense) | | | 1 | | 3 | 83316 | 1 | 1 |
| 83316 890_IBIT | Income Before Income Taxes | | | 1 | | 2 | 83317 | 1 | 1 |
| 83317 890_IBIT_PCT | IBIT as a % of Sales | | | 1 | | 1 | | 3 | 1 |
| 83318 900_TAX | Income Tax Expense | | | 1 | | 2 | 83319 | 1 | -1 |
| 83319 910_TAX_PCT | Tax % of IBIT | 1 | | 1 | | 1 | | 3 | 1 |
| 83320 950_NI | Net Income | | | 1 | | 1 | | 2 | 1 |




The following section describes an example where these additional columns can be used. The **Power Pivot** model **v105 - PBI P&L Hierarchy Demo** is based on a view that shows the Income Statement with the account hierarchy having both Summary and Detailed levels.

When you create a matrix visualization in Power BI you can see a problem. The **Total Employee Compensation** amount is twice when compared to CONTROL[®] data and you can also see a row with data but no heading.

| Cou | ntry Name | | | | | | | | |
|--|---|---|---|---------------------|--|--|----------------|-----------------|---|
| | Canada | France | It | aly | | | Japan | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | FS - Summary Name | | | | DataVal | ue | - | | |
| | Total Employee Com | pensation | | | 73,63 | 9,834 🛹 | | - | |
| | Base Compensation | | | | 29,06 | 6,720 | | - | |
| | Overtime | | | | | 3,279 | | | |
| | Employee Other Co | mpensation | | | 3,82 | 5,911 | | | |
| | Payroll Tax Expense | | | | 2,61 | 6,005 | | - | |
| | Employee Benefit, Health Insurance | | | | | 8,002 | / | | |
| | | | | | 36,81 | 9,917 栏 | | | |
| | Travel & Entertainm | ent | | | 3,87 | 3,909 | | | |
| | Auto Expenses | | | | 52 | 9,223 | | | |
| | Meals and Entertain | ment Expense | | | 34 | 9,287 | | | |
| | Travel Expense | | | | 1,05 | 8,445 | | | |
| | | | | | 1,93 | 6,955 | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| 4 | ۵ | | В | 6 | | D | F | F | G |
| | A | | B | C | A dia ata | D | E | F | G |
| | A Filters: | | B Scenario (Forecast) | с | Adjustr | D ment | E | F | G |
| 1 | A Filters: | | B Scenario (Forecast) | C | Adjustr (ALI | D ment .) | E | F | G |
| 1 | A Filters: | | B Scenario (Forecast) Department | C | Adjustr (ALL | D ment .) | E | F | G |
| 1 | A Filters: Pages: | | B Scenario (Forecast) Department (JPN Japan) | | Adjustr (ALL | D ment .) | E | F | G |
| 1 | A Filters: Pages: | | B Scenario (Forecast) Department (JPN Japan) EXMP - Financial S | C | Adjustr (ALI | D ment .) | E BI P&L H | F | G |
| 1 2 4 5 | A Filters: Pages: | | B Scenario (Forecast) Department (JPN Japan) EXMP - Financial S Scenario Forecast | C taten | Adjustr (ALI | D ment .) v105 - PE | E BI P&L H | F ierarchy F | G |
| 1 2 4 5 7 | A Filters: Pages: | | B Scenario (Forecast) Department (JPN Japan) EXMP - Financial S Scenario Forecast | C taten :: Ad | Adjustr (ALI nents ljustmer | D ment .) v105 - Pf nt ALL | E BI P&L H | F ierarchy F | G |
| 1 2 4 5 7 | A Filters: Pages: | | B Scenario (Forecast) Department (JPN Japan) EXMP - Financial S Scenario Forecast Department Japar | taten :: Ad | Adjustr (ALI nents Ijustmer | D ment .) v105 - Pf nt ALL | E BI P&L Hi | F ierarchy F | G |
| 1 2 4 5 7 9 | A Filters: Pages: COMPANY NAME USD Amounts not S | caled | B Scenario (Forecast) Department (JPN Japan) EXMP - Financial S Scenario Forecast Department Japar | taten :: Ad | Adjustr (ALI nents Ijustmen | D ment .) v105 - Pt nt ALL | E BI P&L Hi | F ierarchy F | G |
| 1 2 4 5 7 9 | A Filters: Pages: COMPANY NAME USD Amounts not S | caled | B Scenario (Forecast) Department (JPN Japan) EXMP - Financial S Scenario Forecast Department Japar Time Period | C taten :: Ad | Adjustr (ALI nents Ijustmel | D ment .) v105 - PE nt ALL | E BI P&L H | F ierarchy F | G |
| 1 2 4 5 7 9 10 11 | A Filters: Pages: COMPANY NAME USD Amounts not S FS - Accou | caled | B Scenario (Forecast) Department (JPN Japan) EXMP - Financial S Scenario Forecast Department Japar Time Period +Year 2019 | taten :: Ad | Adjustr (ALI nents | D ment .) v105 - Pt nt ALL | E BI P&L H | F | G |
| 1 2 4 5 7 9 10 11 12 | A Filters: Pages: COMPANY NAME USD Amounts not S FS - Accou +Total Employee Co | icaled Int Impensation | B Scenario (Forecast) Department (JPN Japan) EXMP - Financial S Scenario Forecast Department Japar Time Period +Year 2019 36,819,917 | taten :: Ad | Adjustr (ALI nents | D ment .) v105 - Pf nt ALL | E BI P&L H | F ierarchy F | G |
| 1 2 4 5 7 9 10 11 12 13 | A Filters: Pages: USD Amounts not S FS - Accou +Total Employee Co +Travel & Entertain | icaled Int Impensation ment | B Scenario (Forecast) Department (JPN Japan) EXMP - Financial S Scenario Forecast Department Japar Time Period +Year 2019 36,819,917 1,936,955 | C taten :: Ad | Adjustr (ALI nents | D ment .) v105 - Pf nt ALL | E BI P&L H | F | G |
| 1 2 4 5 7 9 10 11 12 13 14 | A Filters: Pages: USD Amounts not S FS - Accou +Total Employee Co +Travel & Entertain +Supplies & Service | icaled int impensation ment s | B Scenario (Forecast) Department (JPN Japan) EXMP - Financial S Scenario Forecast Department Japar Time Period +Year 2019 36,819,917 1,936,955 3,803,787 | C taten :: Ad | Adjustr (ALI nents ljustmen | D ment .) v105 - PE nt ALL | E BI P&L Hi | F | G |
| 1 2 4 5 7 9 10 11 11 12 13 14 15 | A Filters: Pages: USD Amounts not S FS - Accou +Total Employee Co +Travel & Entertain +Supplies & Service +Communications & | icaled int impensation ment s & IT | B Scenario (Forecast) Department (JPN Japan) EXMP - Financial S Scenario Forecast Department Japar Time Period +Year 2019 36,819,917 1,936,955 3,803,787 1,025,369 | taten :: Ad | Adjustr (ALI | D ment .) v105 - Pf nt ALL | E BI P&L Hi | F | G |

We overcome these issues by creating DAX measures using the **Depth** column of the account table.

Browse Depth measure determines the level being browsed in the Matrix visualization. ISINSCOPE ('FS - Account'[FS - Summary Name]) + ISINSCOPE ('FS - Account'[FS - Detail Name])





Show Row measure checks if the depth of the member being browsed is valid based on a check on the account hierarchy. We prevent the blank rows from showing data and being evaluated in computing numbers.

[Browse Depth] <= Max('FS - Account'[Depth])

```
Actual Total :=
        VAR SummaryAccountSelected = ISINSCOPE ('FS - Account'[FS - Summary Name])
        VAR SummaryAccountSum = CALCULATE ([DataValue], 'FS - Account'[Depth] = 1,
        ALLEXCEPT ('FS - Account', 'FS - Account'[FS - Summary Name]),
        FILTER(ALL('Scenario'), 'Scenario'[Scenario Name]="Actuals"))
        VAR DetailAccountSelected = ISINSCOPE ('FS - Account'[FS - Detail Name])
        VAR DetailAccountSum = CALCULATE ([DataValue], 'FS - Account'[Depth] = 2,
        ALLEXCEPT ( 'FS - Account', 'FS - Account'[FS - Detail Name]), FILTER(ALL('Scenario'), 'Scenario' [Scenario'])
        Name]="Actuals"))
        RETURN
        SWITCH (
        TRUE ().
        DetailAccountSelected, IF([Show Row], DetailAccountSum),
        SummaryAccountSelected, IF([Show Row], SummaryAccountSum)
        )SummaryAccountSelected, IF([AccountShowRow], SummaryAccountSum)
        )
Forecast Total :=
VAR SummaryAccountSelected = ISINSCOPE ('FS - Account'[FS - Summary Name])
VAR SummaryAccountSum = CALCULATE ([DataValue], 'FS - Account'[Depth] = 1,
ALLEXCEPT ( 'FS - Account', 'FS - Account'[FS - Summary Name]), FILTER(ALL('Scenario'), 'Scenario' [Scenario'])
Name]="Forecast"))
VAR DetailAccountSelected = ISINSCOPE ('FS - Account'[FS - Detail Name])
VAR DetailAccountSum = CALCULATE ([DataValue], 'FS - Account'[Depth] = 2,
ALLEXCEPT ( 'FS - Account', 'FS - Account'[FS - Detail Name]), FILTER(ALL('Scenario'), 'Scenario' [Scenario'])
Name]="Forecast"))
RETURN
SWITCH (
TRUE (),
DetailAccountSelected, IF([Show Row], DetailAccountSum),
SummaryAccountSelected, IF([Show Row], SummaryAccountSum)
```

The measures above determine which values to display based on the level of detail. Now, using these DAX measures the Matrix visualization produces the right results.



| Country Name | | | | | | |
|-----------------------------|--------|--------------|----------------|----------------------------------|--------------|--------------------|
| Canada | France | It | aly | Japan | Spain | |
| | | | | $\uparrow \downarrow \downarrow$ | 4 7 E ··· | |
| FS - Summary Name | | Actual Total | Forecast Total | Variance | Variance Pct | |
| Total Employee Compensatio | on | 22,129,922 | 36,819,917 | 14,689,995 | 39.90% | |
| 🗉 Travel & Entertainment | | 1,164,170 | 1,936,955 | 772,784 | 39.90% | |
| Supplies & Services | | 2,286,195 | 3,803,787 | 1,517,592 | 39.90% | Cost Convention |
| E Communications & IT | | 616,279 | 1,025,369 | 409,090 | 39.90% | |
| E Freight & Shipping | | 1,176,893 | 1,958,123 | 781,230 | 39.90% | |
| Occupancy | | 1,749,436 | 2,910,724 | 1,161,288 | 39.90% | |
| Maintenance | | 1,556,998 | 2,590,544 | 1,033,546 | 39.90% | |
| Insurance | | 712,498 | 1,185,459 | 472,961 | 39.90% | |
| Utilities | | 1,079,879 | 1,796,711 | 716,831 | 39.90% | |
| Depreciation & Amortization | n | 1,458,394 | 2,426,485 | 968,092 | 39.90% | |
| Other Expenses | | 211,523 | 351,933 | 140,410 | 39.90% | |
| Total Overhead Expenses | | 34,142,187 | 56,806,007 | 22,663,820 | 39.90% | |
| OH Exp as a % of Revenue | | 1 | 1 | 0 | 33.02% | |
| Operating income | | 58,011,594 | 99,384,539 | 41,372,945 | 41.63% | |
| Ol as a % of Revenue | | 4 | 7 | 2 | 34.52% | |
| Other Income/(Expenses) | | -600,613 | -999,304 | 398,691 | -39.90% | |
| Interest Income/(Expense) | | 252 | 407 | -154 | -37.95% | |
| Income Before Income Taxes | ; | 57,411,233 | 98,385,641 | -40,974,409 | -41.65% | Revenue Convention |
| IBIT as a % of Sales | | 4 | 7 | -2 | -34.52% | nevenue convention |
| Income Tax Expense | | 9,489,740 | 15,789,092 | 6,299,352 | 39.90% | 1 |
| Tax % of IDIT | | -14 | -20 | 7 | -55.55% | |
| Net Income | | 47,921,493 | 82,596,549 | -34,675,056 | -41.98% | |
| ÷ | | | | | | |

For computing the Variance we have used the **Variance Convention** property to calculate the variance correctly for Cost and Revenue accounts.

```
Variance :=
```

```
IF
(
```

```
OR (MAX ('FS - Account'[VarianceConvention]) = 1, MAX ('FS - Account'[VarianceConvention]) = 0),
[Actual Total] - [Forecast Total],
[Forecast Total] - [Actual Total]
```

There are several articles related to Parent-Child hierarchy-based reporting in Power BI. You can refer the following articles for more details

- https://www.daxpatterns.com/parent-child-hierarchies/
- https://powerpivotpro.com/2018/01/star-schema-switch-drill-income-statement-design/
- <u>https://powerpivotpro.com/2011/09/profit-lossthe-art-of-the-cascading-subtotal/</u>

AS Usage and definition

AS Usage and **AS Definition** properties define the measure calculations in AS and Power BI using DAX – the calculation language for AS Tabular.





Sum is the default calculation for each data column in the fact table, which is appropriate for most CONTROL[®] data, but not all. For example, ratios such as **Percent of Sales** need a special calculation.

The table below defines the options for the **AS Usage** property.

| D Datasource - Revenue - Variance Power Pivot - Fact 🗙 🗴 | | | | | | | |
|--|--|------------|--------------------|---------------|-----|--|--|
| [| Columns | | | | | | |
| | Table: CNTADM.RevenueVariancePowerPivot_Fa | | | | | | |
| | + × ^ × | Find | ٩ | | | | |
| | Column | AS Usage | ^ | | | | |
| | Units | Units | | Base - Autorr | | | |
| | Price | Price | | Measure | | | |
| | GrossSales | Gross Sal | es | Base - Autom | | | |
| | SalesDiscount | Sales Disc | ount | Base - Autorr | | | |
| | SalesReturnsandAllo | Sales Ret | urns and Allowance | Base - Autorr | | | |
| | ShippingCharges | Shipping | Charges | Base - Autorr | | | |
| | | <u> </u> | | > | | | |
| | Column Propertie | es | | | × | | |
| | I∃ ↓A Search | | | | × | | |
| | - Analysis activices | | | | ~ | | |
| | AS Usage | | Base - Automatic 👻 | | | | |
| | AS Definition | | Base - Automatic | | ~ | | |
| | AS Usage | | Base - Hidden | | | | |
| | How this column is exp | orted to A | Base - Column and | Sum Measure | | | |
| | 🗌 Immediate undate I | | Base - Sum Measur | e Only | | | |
| | | | Base - Column Only | / | e | | |
| | | | Mascure | | 90% | | |
| | - | | KDI | | | | |

| AS Usage Property | Description |
|-------------------|---|
| Base – Automatic | Automatically defines a column or measure of the base table as summation, depending on whether the Analysis Services Usage is Export to AS Power BI and Excel (Recommended) or Export to AS Power BI , and whether one or more |





| | calculation groups are present. This is the default option, and it lets the export process determine the most appropriate way to export the data in the column. |
|---------------|---|
| Base – Hidden | Hides the column from appearing in Power Bl |

| buse maden | The still column norm appearing in rower bi. |
|----------------------------------|---|
| Base - Column and Sum Measure | Shows the column and creates a Sum measure. |
| Base - Sum Measure Only | Creates a Sum measure and hides the column. |
| Base - Column Only | Shows the column, which in Power BI, permits a Sum measure to be implied automatically. |
| Calculated Column | Creates a calculated column based on the supplied DAX expression and adds it to the table. |
| Measure | Creates a measure based on the supplied DAX expression and adds it to the table. |
| КРІ | A Key Performance Indicator (KPI) is a visual cue that communicates the amount of progress made toward a measurable goal. |
| | To support the creation of KPIs for CONTROL® Power Pivot models' the following properties are provided: |





| Column Properties | * |
|----------------------|------------|
| I≡ ↓A Search | × |
| AS Definition | •••• ^ |
| AS Sort By Column | |
| AS Display Folder | |
| ▲ KPI | |
| KPI Description | |
| Status Description | |
| Status Expression | ••• |
| Status Graphic | (None) ~ |
| Target Description | |
| Target Expression | |
| Target Format String | |
| Trend Description | |
| Trend Expression | ••• |
| Trend Graphic | (None) 👻 🗸 |

Only **Calculated Column**, **Measure** or **KPI** options require a DAX expression. When you select any one of these in the **AS Usage** property dropdown, and then click on the ellipsis button on the **AS Definition** field, you get a **Quick Measures** dialogue. The **Calculation** dropdown has a list of common types of formulas; most of them are from the **Quick Measures** available in Power BI. Select the required DAX formula from the dropdown and fill in the arguments by dragging and dropping the data fields from the **Power Pivot** model's fact or dimension tables available on the right on the dialogue or directly enter the arguments in the parameter fields.

Here is how the **Quick Measures** dialogue looks like in the **Power Pivot** model edit book:



| Calculation | Fields | |
|---|--|---|
| Ratio 🔹 | Search A | ρ |
| Numerator Gross Sales X Denominator Total Sales X | EXMP_ADJ_Key EXMP_CUST_Key EXMP_PROD_Key TIMEPERIOD_Key Units Price Gross Sales Sales Discount Sales Returns and Allowances Shipping Charges Other Incomes Net Revenue Total Sales % of Total | ^ |
| AS Definition (DAX) DIVIDE([Gross Sales], [Total Sales]) | ▶ Product | ~ |
| Description (Power BI Tooltip) | | |
| Ratio of Gross Sales to Total Sales | | |
| Alias (Power BI Measure Name) % of Total Numeric Format 99.99% v | | |
| | OK Cancel | |

After defining the arguments click **OK**.

Since the DAX expression executes in Analysis Services or Power BI the DAX expressions in your **Calculated Column**, **Measure** or **KPI** should reference columns by their **Alias** and not the **Column ID**. In the DAX expression above, **Gross Sales** is the **Alias** while the **Column ID** is **GrossSales**. Since the formula was defined using the Quick Measure dialogue it is already

KCI Computing Inc.





ensured as the Field list is based on the **Alias**. However, if you are entering the formula manually directly in the **AS definition** field either in the column properties task pane or the object view then you need to make sure you reference the **Alias**.

You can add new measures to the column list and hide existing columns if you do not want them to appear in the Power BI design pane.

For convenience, you can enter directly in the object view worksheet, if you need to make many customizations:

| Revenue – Variance Power Pivot - Fact Power BI Export Table View View Updating: Clear and Insert Filter: | | | | | | | | |
|--|-------------------------------------|----------|------------------------------|---------------|------------------|--------------------------------|--|--|
| ID | Description | DataType | Size Alias | NumericFormat | ASUsage | ASDefinition | | |
| SCENARIO_Key | Key column SCENARIO | Integer | SCENARIO_Key | | Base - Automatic | | | |
| EXMP_CUST_Key | Key column EXMP_CUST | Integer | EXMP_CUST_Key | | Base - Automatic | | | |
| EXMP_PROD_Key | Key column EXMP_PROD | Integer | EXMP_PROD_Key | | Base - Automatic | | | |
| TIMEPERIOD_Key | Key column TIMEPERIOD | Integer | TIMEPERIOD_Key | | Base - Automatic | | | |
| Units | Sum of Units | Float | Units | (9,999) | Base - Automatic | | | |
| Price | Ratio ([Gross Sales], [Units]) | Float | Price | (9,999.99) | Measure | DIVIDE([Gross Sales], [Units]) | | |
| GrossSales | Testing to see if I can save | Float | Gross Sales | (9,999) | Base - Automatic | | | |
| SalesDiscount | Sum of Sales Discount | Float | Sales Discount | (9,999) | Base - Automatic | | | |
| SalesReturnsandAllowances | Sum of Sales Returns and Allowances | Float | Sales Returns and Allowances | (9,999) | Base - Automatic | | | |
| ShippingCharges | Sum of Shipping Charges | Float | Shipping Charges | (9,999) | Base - Automatic | | | |
| OtherIncomes | Sum of Other Incomes | Float | Other Incomes | (9,999) | Base - Automatic | | | |
| NetRevenue | Sum of Net Revenue | Float | Net Revenue | #,##0 | Base - Automatic | | | |

For some people, writing a DAX formula for a measure might be easy. However, for others it can be quite a challenge.

Therefore, CONTROL[®] supplies a list of common types of formulas; most of them are from the **Quick Measures** available in Power BI.

The CONTROL[®] datasource named **AS Usage Definitions** stores all these predefined DAX formulas. You can add additional formulas to this datasource as they become available.

| AS Usa Prototy Updatin | ge Definitions pe view for Data Sources View g: Clear and Insert Filter: | | | | |
|------------------------------|--|--|------------------------|---|---------------------|
| ID 🔻 | Name 🔻 | Description 👻 | Туре 🔻 | DAXTemplate 👻 | NumericFormat 🔻 |
| 1 | Ratio | Calculate the ratio of a value to another one | KCI | DIVIDE([&Numerator], [&Denominator]) | -9,9999.99 |
| 1 | Percentage | Calculate the ratio of a value to another one in percentage | KCI | 100 * DIVIDE([&Numerator], [&Denominator]) | 99.99% |
| 1 | Rolling Average | Calculate the average of a base value over a certain number | KCI | VARSumOfBaseValue = CALCULATE ([&BaseValue], DATE | \$(\$9,999) |
| 100 | Supplied DAX | Supplied DAX | KCI | | -9,9999.99 |
| 100 | Average per category | Calculate the average of Base Value within the Category | Aggregate per category | AVERAGEX(KEEPFILTERS(VALUES([&Category])), CALCULAT | * -9,9999.99 |
| 100. | Variance per category | Calculate the variance of Base Value within the Category | Aggregate per category | VARX.P(KEEPFILTERS(VALUES([&Category])), CALCULATE([| * -9,9999.99 |
| 100 | Max per category | Calculate the maximum of Base Value within the Category | Aggregate per category | MAXX(KEEPFILTERS(VALUES([&Category])), CALCULATE([& | -9,9999.99 |
| 100- | Min per category | Calculate the minimum of Base Value within the Category | Aggregate per category | MINX(KEEPFILTERS(VALUES([&Category])), CALCULATE([& | 8-9,9999.99 |
| 100 | Weighted average per category | Calculate a weighted average of the Base Value for each Calculate a weighted average o | Aggregate per category | VARCATEGORY_VALUES = VALUES([&Category])RETURN | r-9,9999.99 |
| 100 | Filtered value | Calculate a value with a filter applied | Filters | CALCULATE([&BaseValue], [&FilterColumn] IN { "[&Text_Fil | r-9,9999.99 |
| 100 | Difference from filtered value | Calculate the difference between a value and its value with | Filters | VARBASELINE_VALUE = CALCULATE([&BaseValue], [&Filt | -9,9999.99 |
| 100 | Percentage difference from filtered value | Calculate the percentage difference between a value and it | Filters | VARBASELINE_VALUE = CALCULATE([&BaseValue], [&Filt | 99.99% |
| 1010 | Year-to-date total | Calculate the total of the base value from, starting from th | Time intelligence | TOTALYTD([&BaseValue], [&Date]) | -9,9999.99 |
| 101 | Quarter-to-date total | Calculate the total of the base value from, starting from th | Time intelligence | TOTALQTD([&BaseValue], [&Date]) | -9,9999.99 |
| 101 | Month-to-date total | Calculate the total of the base value from, starting from th | Time intelligence | TOTALMTD([&BaseValue], [&Date]) | -9,9999.99 |
| 101 | Year-over-year change | Calculate the year-over-year change of base value in % | Time intelligence | VARPREV_YEAR = CALCULATE([&BaseValue], DATEADD([| 99.99% |
| 1014 | Quarter-over-quarter change | Calculate the quarter-over-quarter change of base value in | Time intelligence | VARPREV_QUARTER = CALCULATE([&BaseValue], DATEA | 799.99% |
| 101 | Month-over-month change | Calculate the month-over-month change of base value in | Time intelligence | VARPREV_MONTH = CALCULATE([&BaseValue], DATEAD | d ^{99.99%} |

To avoid conflicts with future updates of CONTROL®, the CONTROL® specific formulas have IDs 0-999, and Microsoft's Quick Measures have IDs 1001-1999. Please use ID values of 2001 or greater for site-specific formulas.





It is important to understand that you do not need to use a formula from this table if you want a custom DAX calculation for a measure. This table is for users who are not DAX experts to take advantage of calculations that others have created and shared.

Note: If the supplied expression defines the measure name (measureName = ...), the name supplied in the expression will override the alias or column name as the name of the measure.

KPI

The sample model **v105 – KPI Demo** demonstrates creating a KPI in a **Power Pivot** model.

- 1. A KPI is always based on a measure.
- 2. The sample model is anchored on the Variable dimension.
- 3. When you create a KPI, you replace a measure with the KPI. In our **Power Pivot** model, we changed the Gross Margin % measure's **AS Usage** property from **Measure** to **KPI**.

| v105 - KPI Demo - Fact Power BI Export Table View Updating: Clear and Insert Filter: | | | | | | | |
|--|-----------------------------------|----------|------|--------------------|---------------|------------------|-----------------------------------|
| ID | Description | DataType | Size | Alias | NumericFormat | ASUsage | ASDefinition |
| SCENARIO_Key | Key column SCENARIO | Integer | | SCENARIO_Key | | Base - Automatic | |
| EXMP_DEPT_Key | Key column EXMP_DEPT | Integer | | EXMP_DEPT_Key | | Base - Automatic | |
| TIMEPERIOD_Key | Key column TIMEPERIOD | Integer | | TIMEPERIOD_Key | | Base - Automatic | |
| Units | Sum of Units | Float | | Units | | Base - Automatic | |
| Revenue | Sum of Revenue | Float | | Revenue | (9,999) | Base - Automatic | |
| CostofGoodsSold | Sum of Cost of Goods Sold | Float | | Cost of Goods Sold | (9,999) | Base - Automatic | - |
| GrossMargin | Sum of Gross Margin | Float | | Gross Margin | (9,999) | Base - Automatic | |
| GMasaofRevenue | Ratio ([Gross Margin], [Revenue]) | Float | | Gross Margin % | 99.9% | KPI | DIVIDE([Gross Margin], [Revenue]) |

- 4. There are basically three properties: Status, Target, and Trend. These are the internal Tabular names for Status, Goal, and Trend. Status and Trend let you define a description, expression, and graphic to use. The Target (which is called Goal in Power BI) has a format string and no graphic. Status and Trend are graphical items, whereas Target is a number.
- 5. The measure itself becomes the value of the KPI. In our case the AS Definition had already a DAX expression to calculate the Gross Margin %. The newly created measures are named _Gross Margin % Goal, _Gross Margin % Trend, and _Gross Margin % Status. They act as regular measures; you can call them in your DAX code and use them in reports.
- 6. Find below the values for the various properties for our KPI:

Status Expression

```
-- DAX code for Status Expression

VAR MarginPercentage = [Gross Margin %]

VAR MarginTolerance = 0.02

VAR MarginGoal = [_Gross Margin % Goal]

RETURN

IF (NOT ISBLANK ( MarginPercentage ),

SWITCH (TRUE,

MarginPercentage < MarginGoal - MarginTolerance, -1, -- Negative

MarginPercentage > MarginGoal + MarginTolerance, 1, -- Positive

0
```





)

Observe that the DAX expression above refers the **_Margin % Goal** measure to obtain the target of the KPI. By comparing the value of the KPI against the target, we return -1 for bad, 1 for good, and 0 for average.

Status Graphic

The Status graphic and Trend graphic properties are enumerations and can be specified by selecting a value from the Drop down either in the task pane or the object view. We have set the Status Graphic to **Traffic Light**.

| D Datasourc | e - v105 - KPI Demo | - Fact | | | × | » |
|--------------|---------------------|---------------------------------|----------|------|---|---|
| Columns | | | | | | |
| Table: CN | ITADM.v105KPI | Demo_Fact | | | | ٥ |
| + × ^ | * | | | Find | 5 | ρ |
| Column | | Alias | AS Usage | | | ^ |
| GMasaofRev | venue | Status Arrow | | | ^ | |
| FullTimeEqu | iivalent | Thermometer | | | | |
| TotalEmploy | /eeCompensation | Three Triangles | | | | |
| TravelEntert | ainment | Three Circles Colored | | | | |
| SuppliesSen | vices | Three Flags Colored | | | | |
| Communica | itionsIT | Three Stars Colored | | | | |
| i pri unit | | Three Symbols Uncircled Colored | | | | ~ |
| × | | Traffic Light | | | | |
| Column P | roperties | Traffic Light - Single | | | | × |
| | Search | Variance Arrow | | | | , |
| | Search | Status Arrow - Ascending | | | | |
| Target Ex | pression | Status Arrow - Descending | | | | ^ |
| Target Fo | ormat String | <i>","</i> 0.70 | | | ~ | |

Target Expression

CALCULATE([Gross Margin %], FILTER(ALL('Scenario'), 'Scenario'[Scenario Name]="Forecast"))

Target Format String

Since the Target is a value, we specify a format string. In our case Gross Margin % is a Percentage and we specify the format string as **#,#0** % which is the DAX format for percentage.

Refer the following link for more details on the format string specifications. <u>https://docs.microsoft.com/en-us/dax/custom-numeric-formats-for-the-format-function</u>





Trend Expression

```
-- DAX code for Trend Expression

VAR MarginPerc = [Gross Margin %]

VAR PrevMarginPerc = CALCULATE([Gross Margin %],SAMEPERIODLASTYEAR('Time

Period'[FullDate]))

RETURN

IF (

NOT ISBLANK ( MarginPerc ) && NOT ISBLANK ( PrevMarginPerc ),

SWITCH (

TRUE,

MarginPerc > PrevMarginPerc, 1, -- Positive

MarginPerc < PrevMarginPerc, -1, -- Negative

0

)
```

Trend Graphic

We specified this as Standard Arrow.

7. In the Power BI user interface, the measure is shown as a KPI, no longer as a measure.



8. The result of our KPI in a matrix visualization is as follows:



| Year Name Country Name | Year 2018 Margin % | Status | Trend | Year 2019 Margin % | Status | Trend |
|---------------------------|-----------------------|--------|-------|-----------------------|--------|-------|
| Canada | 52.6% | | | 61.4% | | 7 |
| France | 44.2% | | | 48.5% | | 7 |
| Italy | 44.2% | | | 48.5% | | 7 |
| Japan | 59.5% | | | 61.4% | | 7 |
| Spain | 44.2% | | | 48.5% | | 7 |
| Taiwan | 58.7% | | | 48.6% | | 2 |
| Thailand | 58.7% | | | 48.6% | | 2 |
| United States | 52.6% | | | 61.4% | | 7 |

You can refer to the following articles to understand more about KPIs and their usage in Power BI and excel:

- <u>https://www.sqlbi.com/articles/creating-kpis-in-power-bi-desktop/</u>
- <u>https://www.sqlbi.com/articles/kpi-in-tabular-models-for-power-bi-and-excel/</u>

Keyword resolution

While defining DAX expressions you may use keywords. However, please be aware about the keyword resolution in Power Pivot models.

- Keywords are resolved in the scope of the Power Pivot model
- Keywords are resolved in the Description of ANY table dedicated to the Power Pivot model
- Keywords are resolved in the DAX expressions of any calculation group
- Keywords are resolved for any Additional table in the following fields:
 - AS Definition (the DAX measure)
 - KPI Status Expression
 - KPI Target Expression
 - KPI Trend Expression
- Keyword Collection that is appended to the Information table is resolved.

Essentially, all tables which are dedicated to Power Pivot model do NOT have keyword resolution. For clarity, define what you need explicitly in the model.

Tables which are shared among multiple Power Pivot models will have the keywords in critical expressions resolved.

AS Sort By Column

The exported relational tables of the **Power Pivot** model have a sequence column with values set according to their display order in the hierarchy in CONTROL[®]. The sort order for the columns is based on this column.





As you can see in the screenshot below the Month name column is sorted based on the sequence column Seq_TIMEPERIOD. This ensures that when you use the Month Name column in your Power BI visualizations the months are sorted based on the Month ID and not alphabetically based on the Month name.

| ParentKey_TIMEPERIOD | Display Folder | |
|---------------------------|-----------------|----------------|
| | > Format String | ##0 |
| | Hidden | False |
| E Formula Type_TIMEPERIOD | Name | Month Name |
| | Sort By Column | Seq_TIMEPERIOD |
| > 👬 B - MY | Source Column | MTH_Name |
| > III Information | Summarize By | None |

This mechanism works just fine for most cases. However, in the rare case where you want to have sorting based on a different column; like for example when you want to sort Products based on their color instead their name; you can use the **AS Sort By Column** property to specify the column that drives the sorting. When specifying this property, you need to use the **Alias** and not the **Column ID** field of your dimensions' relational table.

| Н | I | J | К | | D Dat | asoui | rce - Revenue – V | /ariance Power Pivot - Fact | ×» |
|--------------------------------|---|--------------|---------------|-----|--------------|--------|-------------------|------------------------------|---------|
| | | | | | Colu | imns | | | |
| 4.511 | | | D: 1 5 11 | KDU | Table | e: C | NTADM.Reve | enueVariancePowerPivot_Fa | act ᅌ |
| ASUsage e - Automatic | ASDefinition | SortByColumn | DisplayFolder | KPI | Colu | mn | Properties | | * |
| e - Automatic e - Automatic | | | | | III , | ₽₽ | Search | | × |
| e - Automatic | | | | | ▲ Ide | ntific | cation | | ~ |
| e - Automatic | DIVIDE([Gross Sales]_[Units]) | | | | Co | olumr | n Name | GrossSales | |
| e - Automatic | , in the second s | | | | De | escrip | otion | Testing to see if I can save | |
| e - Automatic | | | | | ▲ Det | finiti | on | 5 | |
| e - Automatic | | | | | Da | ata Tv | /pe | Float | ~ |
| e - Automatic | | | | | Si | 7e | F - | 0 | |
| e - Automatic | | | | | Δ1 | iac | | Gross Sales | |
| | | | | | A Dis | nlav | | cross suics | |
| | | | | | St | vle | | (9 999) | ~ |
| | | | | | A An | alvsis | Services | (-,) | |
| | | | | | AS | S Usa | ae | KPI | ~ |
| | | | | | ۵۹ | S Defi | inition | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | -AS | sort | t by Column | | |
| | | | | | AS | 5 Disp | olay Folder | | |





AS Display Folder

The measures of your exported **Power Pivot** model show up in the Fact table in the Power BI Fields pane. In case you have dozens of measures in the same table you might look for a better organization of the list of measures. The **AS Display Folder** column property allows grouping of measures in a folder structure.

- To put a measure in a folder, specify the folder name e.g. My Folder
- To put a measure in a nested folder grouping, use the backslash (\) character e.g. My Folder\My Sub Folder
- To put a measure in multiple folders, use the semi-colon to separate the folder names e.g. My Folder;My Other Folder

Note: The DisplayFolders are supported in Analysis Service 2016 and later versions

The screenshots below demonstrate how the AS Display Folder definition works in Power BI:

| DataType | Size | Alias | NumericFormat | ASUsage | ASDefinition | DisplayFolder |
|----------|------|-------------------------------------|---------------|------------------|---|---------------|
| Integer | | SCENARIO_Key | | Base - Automatic | | |
| Integer | | EXMP_ADJ_Key | | Base - Automatic | | |
| Integer | | EXMP_CUST_Key | | Base - Automatic | | |
| Integer | | EXMP_PROD_Key | | Base - Automatic | | |
| Integer | | TIMEPERIOD_Key | | Base - Automatic | | |
| Float | | Units Amount | (9,999) | Base - Hidden | | Others |
| Float | | Price | (9,999.99) | Measure | DIVIDE([Gross Sales], [Units]) | Others |
| Float | | Gross Sales Amount | (9,999) | Base - Hidden | | Others |
| Float | | Sales Discount Amount | (9,999) | Base - Hidden | | Others |
| Float | | Sales Returns and Allowances Amount | (9,999) | Base - Hidden | | Others |
| Float | | Shipping Charges Amount | (9,999) | Base - Hidden | | Others |
| Float | | Other Incomes Amount | (9,999) | Base - Hidden | | Others |
| Float | | Net Revenue Amount | (9,999) | Base - Hidden | | Others |
| Float | 25 | Total Sales | (9,999) | Measure | CALCULATE([Gross Sales], ALL('Fact')) | Key Measures |
| Float | | % of Total | 99.99% | Measure | DIVIDE([Gross Sales], [Total Sales]) | Key Measures |
| Float | | Scale Denominator | (9,999) | Measure | SELECTEDVALUE (Scale[Denominator Column], 1) | Others |
| Float | | Units | (9,999) | Measure | DIVIDE (SUMX (Fact, [Units Amount]), [Scale Denominator]) | Key Measures |
| Float | | Gross Sales | (9,999) | Measure | DIVIDE (SUMX (Fact, [Gross Sales Amount]), [Scale Denominator]) | Key Measures |
| Float | | Sales Discount | (9,999) | Measure | DIVIDE (SUMX (Fact, [Sales Discount Amount]), [Scale Denominator]) | Key Measures |
| Float | | Sales Returns and Allowances | (9,999) | Measure | DIVIDE (SUMX (Fact, [Sales Returns and Allowances Amount]), [Scale Denominator]) | Key Measures |
| Float | | Shipping Charges | (9,999) | Measure | DIVIDE (SUMX (Fact, [Shipping Charges Amount]), [Scale Denominator]) | Key Measures |
| Float | | Other Incomes | (9,999) | Measure | DIVIDE (SUMX (Fact, [Other Incomes Amount]), [Scale Denominator]) | Key Measures |
| Float | | Net Revenue | (9,999) | Measure | DIVIDE (SUMX (Fact, [Net Revenue Amount]), [Scale Denominator]) | Key Measures |



| Fields | > |
|----------|------------------------------|
| | :h |
| ∽ 🕞 Fact | : |
| 🔨 🖬 Kej | / Measures |
| | % of Total |
| | Gross Sales |
| | Net Revenue |
| | Other Incomes |
| | Sales Discount |
| | Sales Returns and Allowances |
| | Shipping Charges |
| | Total Sales |
| | Units |
| Ot | hers |
| | Price |
| | Scale Denominator |

Information Table

Every export creates a table that summarizes critical information about the CONTROL® source data to assist in validation and troubleshooting. The information includes but not limited to, CONTROL® model(s) and view(s) names, view properties like scaling, currency, filters on dimensions and the Keyword collection used by the base view. You can see the information in Power BI using the Property name and value columns from the **Information** table.

| 1 | Property Name | Property Value | < | < | Fields |
|---|--|--|----------|-----|-------------------|
| 1 | CONTROL Model | EXMP_REV_RP: Revenue - Reporting | | | |
| ł | CONTROL View | REVENUE_VARANCEPOWERPVOT: Revenue - Variance Power Pivot | ≺ | SiS | C Search |
| ł | Currency | USD | <u>_</u> | ua | |
| i | Filter on EXMP_ADJ: Adjustment | ALL | ter | iza | V 🖬 Fact |
| ł | Filter on EXMP_CUST: Customer | ALL | s. | tio | ✓ |
| ł | Filter on EXMP_PROD: Product | ALL | | sui | Customer |
| ł | Filter on EXMP_REV_ACCT: Revenue Account | EXMP_REV_ACCT 300_UNITS THRU 400_REV | | | ✓ |
| ł | Filter on Scenario | SCENARIO ACT, BUD, FCST | | | ∧ ■ Information |
| i | Filter on TIMEPERIOD: Time Period | MTH 201901 THRU 201908 OR MTH 201801 THRU 201808 | | | Property Name |
| ł | Scaling | No Scaling | | | |
| ł | SLCT_EXMP_FS_ACCT_TGT | 300_UNITS THRU 400_REV | | | Property value |
| ł | SLCT_SCN_TGT | ACT, BUD, FCST | | | Sequence |
| ł | Translation Map | EXMP_STD_TRANS: EXMP - Standard Translation | | | V III Product |
| 1 | L | | | | 🗸 🎹 Scenario |
| 1 | | Y L | | | Time Intelligence |

KCI Computing Inc.





Here's an example of a keyword collection is included in the base view of a **Power Pivot** model.

| Properties for View PBI - US | by State X | |
|--|--|---------------------------|
| ∃ ↓A Search | × | |
| Dynamically Updates | | |
| Allow Formulas | No Formulas v | |
| Allow Navigation | | |
| Regenerate Behavior | Prompt v | |
| Reopen Behavior | Prompt v | |
| Target | i) New Worksheet v | |
| Accessibility Miscellaneous ObjectParameters | | |
| &COVID19_CURRENT | &COVID19_CURRENT_DAY | |
| Flex Related | | |
| Is Flex View | | |
| Flex Numeric Formatti | Computational Flex Tables Only | |
| Parameters | | - |
| Keyword Collection | PBI KCollection (ID: PBIKCOLLECTION) | |
| Keyword Collection | Default Instance (ID: DEFAULTINSTANCE) | |
| | OK Cancel | |
| Collection (KCollection) :tion Items View ng: Clear and Insert Filter: CONTROLKC | DLLECTIONS PBIKCOLLECTION | Reniacem |
| 00 COVID19_CURRENT_DAY | &COVID19_CURRENT_DAY | Replacem |
| 00 COMD19_CURRENT_DATPBI | | 0" "") & Trime (Sumid (St |

The values of the keywords from the keyword collection are used in the DAX expressions to compute values as well as for display in the Power BI report.





| - | |
|-----|--|
| 1 | Total Daily New Confirmed = |
| 22 | 2 VAR Total_US_Canada = |
| | CALCULATE [[Daily New Confirmed], FILTER('CNTADM PBICovid19USByState_COVID19TIMEDAY',[COVID19DAY_Name]=SELECTCOLUMNS |
| | (FILTER('CNTADM PBICovid19USByState_Info', [PropertyName]="COVID19_CURRENT_DAY_US"), "PropertyValue", "Day " & |
| _ | <pre>[PropertyValue])), FILTER('CNTADM PBICovid19USByState_COVID19GEOGRAPHY',[COVID19COUNTRY]="US" [COVID19COUNTRY]</pre> |
| II. | ="CANADA")) |
| 4 | VAR Total_Others = |
| 15 | CALCULATE([Daily New Confirmed], FILTER('CNTADM PBICovid19USByState_COVID19TIMEDAY',[COVID19DAY_Name]=SELECTCOLUMNS |
| | (FILTER('CNTADM PBICovid19USByState_Info', [PropertyName]="COVID19_CURRENT_DAY"), "PropertyValue", "Day " & |
| ÷. | <pre>[PropertyValue])), FILTER('CNTADM PBICovid19USByState_COVID19GEOGRAPHY', [COVID19COUNTRY]<>"US" && [COVID19COUNTRY]</pre> |
| 1 | <>"CANADA")) |
| 6 | <pre>FRETURN Total_US_Canada + Total_Others</pre> |



Tabular Editor

For **Power Pivot** models that have their **Analysis Services usage** property set to **Exported to AS – Power BI and Excel (Recommended)**; CONTROL® creates a AS Tabular model in Analysis Services as part of the Export process. The **CONTROL-Managed** datasources dedicated to the **Power Pivot** model allow us to review and override properties related to the AS Tabular model.

However, during development of Power Pivot models we may want to review the exported Tabular model. **Tabular Editor** is a tool that enables you to easily build, maintain and manage tabular models using an intuitive, lightweight editor. A hierarchical view shows all objects in your tabular model. They are organized by display folders, with support for multi-select property editing and DAX syntax highlighting.

For **Power Pivot** models exported from CONTROL® Tabular editor is very useful for:

- 1) Validating that the export has produced the expected result.
- 2) Dealing with properties that the export does not create or maintain.
- 3) Leveraging the DAX expression editor with syntax coloring and error detection.





On the **CONTROL**[®] **Model** tab, in the **Utilities** group, select **Tabular Editor**. The Tabular Editor is launched and opens the Tabular Model associated to your Power Pivot model.



Easy Power BI

To encourage our user community to create Power BI reports on their own using their CONTROL[®] data we have introduced a simple mechanism called Easy Power BI.

The framework of Easy Power BI is described below:

Categories

- Create an **Access category** with the ID **KCI_PowerBITemplates**. Ideally, this is where you should save your CONTROL® view templates.
- Create an **Access category** with the ID **KCI_PowerBIViews**. This is the default category for saving the user-customized views that will be exported.
- Both these categories are optional but are recommended for organizing the exported data. If you do not want to use the specified ID's, create a keyword (e.g., &KCI_PowerBITemplates) whose replacement is the category ID. The keyword may have user scopes but should not have model scopes.

Power BI Template Model and Views

- Create one or more template **Power Pivot** Models. The following three template models are made available as part of the upgrade to version 10.5:
 - PBI Model Template Unanchored
 - PBI Model Template Custom Dimension
 - PBI Model Template Calculation Group





- Create one or more views to serve as templates and put them in the **KCI_PowerBITemplates** category.
- Each of these template views must contain as part of its Description
 [PowerPivotModelTemplate=xxxxx], where xxxxx is the ID of a power pivot model.

| I∃ ↓A Search | | | × |
|--|------------|--|--------|
| Identification | | | ^ |
| Name | i) | Power BI Template 1 | |
| ID | i | POWERBITEMPLATE1 | |
| Class | | View | |
| Subclass | i | Computational | |
| Category | | Power BITemplates (ID: KCI_POWERBITEMPLATES) | |
| Description | | [PowerPivotModelTemplate=PowerPivotTemplate] | |
| Scopes | | | |
| Model Scope | (i) | All (ID: ALL) | - |
| User Scope | (i) | All (ID: ALL) | - |
| Is Onfile Scope | | True | |
| Primary Comments and Hype | rlinks | | |
| Display Cell Commen | ts | | |
| Display Hyperlinks | | | |
| Display Row Commer | nts | No row comments | ~ |
| Definition | | | |
| Base Model | | (None) | • |
| Auto Generate Form | | | |
| Form Info | | (None) | • |
| Dynamic Behavior | | DefineOnOpen | * * |
| Dynamic Definition | | RefineForModel | ••• 0 |

- The following three template views are made available as part of the upgrade to version 10.5:
 - o PBI View Template Unanchored
 - PBI View Template Custom Dimension
 - PBI View Template Calculation Group

Export Script

1. Create a role that specifies views in the KCI_PowerBIViews category





| D Role - Export to Power | BI Role | | × × |
|--------------------------|-------------------------|---|---------|
| Privileges Usage | | | |
| Object Types | | | |
| ▲ All Objects | | Search | م |
| ✓ Structure | | 4 | |
| Attribute | | ~ | |
| Role Definition | | **** | |
| × | | | u d |
| Object Class | Applies To | Privilege | Builder |
| View | Power BIViews (Category | User: Use, review, limited update, nc $^{\times}$ | |

 Create a script which performs the export. The action script uses the option of PowerPivotModel=ActiveView, and the Power Pivot UpdatingBehavior=Create or Replace All





| D Script - Export View to Power | BI | \$ | < >> | |
|--|---------------------------------------|-------------------------------|------|--|
| Selected Content | | | ¥ | |
| XAY | | | \$ | |
| Туре | Name | Argument | | |
| 1 Export PowerPivot Model | PowerPivotModel=ACTIVEVIEW, P | PowerPivotModel=ACTIVEVIEW, P | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| Script Item Properties | **** | | ¥ | |
| | | | | |
| search | | | × | |
| Identification | | | | |
| Name | PowerPivotModel=ACTIVEVIEW, PowerPivo | tUpdating=2 | | |
| Step | 1 | | | |
| 4 Definition | | | | |
| Argument | PowerPivotModel=ACTIVEVIEW, PowerPivo | tUpdating=2 | | |
| Action Type | Export PowerPivot Model | | | |
| Internal Action Type | 12 | | | |
| Export PowerPivot Mo (None) | | | | |
| Parameters | | | | |
| Comment | | | | |
| Perform If | (None) | 1 | • | |
| PowerPivotModel | Active View (ID: ACTIVEVIEW) | | • | |
| Power Pivot Updati 🕕 Create or Replace All | | | | |

2. Make it a utility script that is available for use with views in the **KCI_PowerBIViews** category





| Real Properties for Script Exp | port Vie | ew to Power Bl | × |
|--|------------|---|-----------|
| I∃ ↓ ^A ₂ Search | | | × |
| Identification | | | |
| Name | 1 | Export View to Power BI | |
| ID | (i) | EXPORTVIEWTOPOWERBI | |
| Class | | Script | |
| Subclass | i) | Action | |
| Category | | Public (ID: PUBLIC) | • |
| Description | | | |
| Definition Parameters Logging Accessibility Miscellaneous Utility | / | | |
| Utility Function | / | Utility Function for Objects | ¥ |
| Utility Role | 10 | Export to Power BI Role (ID: EXPORTTOPOWERBIROLE) | • |
| Available Contexts | | For Both | ¥ |
| | | | |
| | | | OK Cancel |

Creating Easy Power BI Views

- 1. From the **CONTROL[®] Navigator** tab, in the **Views** group, click **Views**.
- 2. Click the **Select Model** icon and select a *model*.
- 3. Click the **Power BI Templates** category, select one of the *views*, and then click **OK**.



| Fil | e | Home | Insert | Page L | | Formula | s Data | Review | View | CONTROL® Na | vigator | CONTROL® Develo | oper 🔉 Te | ll me what you want to do | | ĺ |
|-------------|---------------|----------|--------------------------|--------|-------|--------------|-----------------|----------------|--------|-------------|---------|-----------------------|-----------------|---------------------------|----------------------|---------|
| ۲L | ogin | | | | 0 | ") Refresh | • | | 8 | | | | 0 | KEYK | Options | |
| | ogout ONTR | OL® | Revenue - Reporting * | Books | Views | ³ | pen a View | | | | | | | | | × |
| | Login | | Model 5 | Books | | 3 | 🕄 💽 Reve | nue - Reporti | ing | | | | | | Search | Q |
| A1 | | Ŧ | : X | √ £ | | Red | ents | | | | | Name | | ID | Description | |
| | | | | | | 6 | Rev - Rasic | | | | @ ^ | PBI View Template - 0 | Calculation Gro | PBI_VW_TMPL_CALCGROUP | [PowerPivotModelTe | mplate= |
| » | | Α | В | C | | D | Funence - Paci | | | | | PBI View Template - 0 | Custom Dimen: | PBI_VW_TMPL_CUSTOMDM | I [PowerPivotModelTe | mplate= |
| 0 | 1 | | | | | | expense - basi | c _ | | | | PBI View Template - U | Unanchored | PBI_VW_TMPL_UNANCHOR | E [PowerPivotModelTe | mplate= |
| ev | 2 | | | | | | EAMP - Expens | se - Demo | | | | + | | | | |
| 2 | 3 | | | | | | Expense - By N | /ion - Input - | Normal | | × . | | | | | |
| 6 | 4 | | | | | Q | Exmp - Rev - S | VA - PRCS | | | ×. | • | | | | |
| Clea | 5 | | | | | Q | PBI View Temp | late – Unanch | hored | | -100 ~ | | | | | |
| do | 6 | | | | | Cat | egories | | | | | | | | | |
| nki | 7 | | | | | | EO Paulanua | | | | _ | | | | | |
| 1 | 8 | | | | | | 50 Revenue | on Objects | | | | | | | | |
| u | 9 | | | | | | 00 Dublic | ser Objects | | | | | | | | |
| gat | 10 | | | | | | 50 Casurity | | | | | | | | | |
| Vav | 11 | | | | | | 75 Sustant | | | | | | | | | |
| ect | 12 | | | | | - 6 | 00 Developm | ant | | | | | | | | |
| _ [q | 13 | | | | | | 50 Bert Practic | | | | | | | | | |
| M | 14 | | | | | | biect Templat | ec. | | | | | | | | |
| Σ | 15 | | | | - (| 3 | ower Bl Templ | atec | | | | | | | | |
| TAD | 17 | | | | | | ower BI Views | | | | _ | | | | | |
| S | 18 | | | | | -11 ' | | | | | | | | | | |
| U | 19 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | 20 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| tion | 21 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| viga | 22 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| er Na | 23 | | | | | | | | | Object | Name | PBI View Template – U | Jnanchored | | Computational | v |
| i ∩ View | closed | ⊢ ⊢ t | Sheet | 1 | + | | | | | | | | | | ОК 🗸 | Cancel |

- 4. Modify the *view's* filters and branches as needed.
- 5. Click **Views** > **Save As** and give it a descriptive name. The view will be saved in the **KCI_PowerBIViews** category.
- 6. On the **CONTROL[®] Navigator** ribbon, in the **Utilities** group, click the down arrow under **Utility Scripts**, and click **Export View to Power BI**.

| E | • | | | | | | | | | | | Book7 - CO | NTROL® | | | | | |
|-----------------------------------|--|------------------------------|-------------------------------------|----------------|--|--|--|----------------|------------------------------------|------------------|-------------------------------------|--------------------------|----------------------|------------------------|-------------------|----------------------------------|-------------------------|--------------------|
| Fi | le | Hom | e Insert | Page | Layout | Formu | las Data | Review | View | CON | TROL® N | lavigator | CONTRO | DL® View | CON | TROL® De | veloper | Add-ir |
| €L →L | ogin. ogou CONT Logi | it ROL® | Revenue - Reporting + Model 5 | Books Books | Views | ר Refres Reger Colve Solve | sh • nerate • Select Page /iews | File Data ∗ | Forms • Forms | Sheets Sheets | Scripts Scripts | Transforms Transforms | Menu Pane Show | View Pane //Hide | Tasks Vorkflow | Utility Scripts • Export V | Universe iew to Powe | Close er Bl pn: |
| A23 | 3 | * | : × | < - 1 | fsc -1 | Vet Reve | nue | | | | | | | | | 1 | | |
| >> | | | А | | E | 3 | с | D | | E | | F | | G | н | 0 | 1 | Form |
| igation - Winkipop.Clean105_Dev 🧿 | 1 2 4 5 7 9 11 13 14 15 | Filters Pages USD An | : | aled | Sce (Ac PBI - Rev After sa Include o Filter Tin Time | enario tuals) venue ving your one or two ne Period to Period | Adjustment (Total Adjustme view and runnin scenarios o a single year | C (Tota | ustomer I Custome port scrip | r) (Tot | Product al Product se details |) s to get data i | n Power | BI Deskt | op >>> Se | rver: BELL | .S Databas | se: PBIR |
| Navi | 16 | R | evenue Accour | nt | Jar | n-19 | Feb-19 | Mar | -19 | Apr-1 | 9 | May-19 | Ju | ın-19 | Jul- | 19 | Aug-19 | |
| ect | 17 | Units Cross Sa | lac | | 3 | ,755,978 | 3,774,852 | 3,1 | 793,821 | 3,81 | 2,885 | 3,832,046 | 5 | 3,842,662 | 3,8 | 370,655 | 3,890,1 | 41 |
| | 10 | 01055.50 | ICS | | 10 | .447.0101 | 10.040.0211 | 10.0 | 000.009 | 10.74 | 1.520 | 10.021.453 | 21 I | 0.555.507 | 1 19.0 | 11.000 | 19.100.0 | |

- 7. Launch Microsoft Power BI Desktop.
- 8. Once on the **Home** tab, in the **Data** group, click **Get data** > **Analysis Services**.





9. Enter your Analysis Services server name and database name. These details are available in the header section of your newly saved Easy Power BI view.

| 1 | A | В | С | D | E | F | G | Н | 1 | J |
|-------------|-------------------------------|--|---------------------------------------|------------------------------|----------------------------|--------------------|-------------------|---------------|----------------|---------|
| 1 | Filters: | | | | | | | | | |
| 2 | Pages: | Scenario (Actuals) | Adjustment (Total Adjustme) | Customer (Total Customer) | Product (Total Product) | | | | | |
| 4 5 7 | COMPANY NAME Company Stops | Revenue - Reporti After saving your | g PBI - Revenue view and running | the export script | use these details | to get data in Pov | ver BI Desktop >> | Server: BELLS | Database: PBI_ | REVENUE |

| SQL Server Analysis Services database | | |
|---------------------------------------|----|--------|
| Server ① | | |
| Bells | | |
| Database (optional) | | |
| PBI_Revenue | | |
| O Import | | |
| Connect live | | |
| MDX or DAX query (optional) | | |
| · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | |
| | OK | Cancel |
| | | |

10. Start creating visualizations!





11. When your data or meta-data changes, simply reopen the *view* and re-run the script. In most cases your visualizations will just keep working.

Other administrative notes

Override AS table name

One of the primary goals of creating an AS Model from your CONTROL[®] data is to provide an understandable, shared source for business savvy users to easily create visualizations and derive insights.

The use of familiar, understandable names and useful tooltips is critical in supporting that goal. The use of the names and descriptions in CONTROL[®] is a good first step, but we recommend that you review the model in Power BI and fine tune it to suit your target audience.



| Fiel | ds | | > |
|------|-------|------------------------------|---|
| 2 | Searc | h | |
| ^ 🖬 | Fact | | |
| ~ | Key | Measures | |
| | | % of Total | |
| | | Gross Sales | |
| | | Net Revenue | |
| | | Total Sales | |
| | | Units | |
| ~ | Oth | lers | |
| | | Other Incomes | |
| | | Price | |
| | | Sales Discount | |
| | | Sales Returns and Allowances | |
| | | Shipping Charges | |
| ~ ⊞ | Adju | stment | |
| ~ ⊞ | Cust | omer | |
| ~ 🖦 | Info | rmation | |
| ~ | Prod | luct | |
| | Score | ania | |

To override a table name, you must find the datasource (it is hidden by default) and change the part of the description in brackets reading "[ASName=....]":



| File Home Insert F | Page Layout Formulas Data Re | view | View CONTROL® Navigator | CONTROL® Sheet CONTROL® Developer CONTROL® Mod | lel Developer A | | | |
|--|---|--------------|--|--|-----------------|--|--|--|
| Object User Browse Universe Pane Pane Objects Navigation | Category Ignore Filters Category Applicatio | Datasou n | irce Users Roles Security Store/Restor | e Actions Acti | | | | |
| D69 | * : × ✓ fx | | Real Properties for Datasource Reve | nue - Power Pivot - Fact | × | | | |
| + Object Navigation - V Type Category | Winkipop.Clean104_Dev 🔻 🗙 🕊 | 1 2 | Search | | × | | | |
| Object Types CONTROL-Managed | | | Name () | Revenue - Power Pivot - Fact | | | | |
| Structure ^ | Revenue × | | () D | REVENUE POWERPIVOT FACT | | | | |
| ▶ Attribute | Filter by Categories: (0) Clear | 5 | Class | Datasource | | | | |
| ▲ D.D Datasource | Found Objects: (11) 7 Name 8 | | Subclass (j) | CONTROL-Managed | v | | | |
| CONTROL-Managed | | | 8 Category 350 Revenue (ID: 350_REV) | | | | | |
| SQL Query | EXMP - Revenue Change Log | 9 | Description [ASName=Fact] Revenue - Power Pivot Fact Table | | | | | |
| Generated SQL | Revenue - Power Pivot Model - | 10 | Definition | | | | | |
| Property | Revenue - Power Pivot Model - | : 12 | Data Source Type | HomeDataBase | v | | | |
| Dimension | Revenue - Power Pivot - Adjusti | 13 | Data Table | CNTADM.RevenuePowerPivot_Fact | | | | |
| 이 문 Hierarchy | Revenue - Power Pivot - Custon | 14 | Script Info | (None) | - | | | |
| 🕅 Level | Revenue - Power Pivot - Fact | 15 | 4 Content | | | | | |
| ▲ 🎯 Model | Revenue - Power Pivot - Inform | 16 | Has Access Roles | | | | | |
| Computational | Revenue - Power Pivot - Produc | 17 | Has Attribute Values | | | | | |
| Source Data | Revenue - Power Pivot - Scenar | 18 | Has Codes | | | | | |
| Administrative | Revenue - Power Pivot - Time P | 19 | Has Hierarchy Rollups | \checkmark | ~ | | | |
| Power Pivot ~ | REV - PBI - Analysis - AS - Reve | 20 | | | | | | |
| | | 21 | | ОК | Cancel | | | |

Re-use exported relational tables

In an enterprise application environment, instead of creating relation tables for dimensions for each of our **Power Pivot** models we could consider setting them up once and then re-using them in multiple **Power Pivot** models.

Dimensional data sources created in the export of a power pivot model will be reused when there is an existing data source that:

- Matches the dimension key.
- Matches the filter expression.
- Matches the branch.
- Is defined to be reusable.

To create reusable dimension relational tables, we suggest following the steps below:

- Create a template **Power Pivot** model based on a base and additional views that have the dimensions with the requisite settings for filter and branch generally used.
- For example, if you mostly use month and year levels for reporting and visualize data for Current and Prior year set up your time dimension in the base view accordingly.
- Set the Materialization Behavior for your **Power Pivot** models as **Materialize without Foreign Keys.** Since the same relational object is used in multiple models this ensures that we do not entangle ourselves due to the Foreign key relationships.





- The template model is only used to create the required dimension data sources and relational tables and not to create reports. So set the Analysis Services usage property as **Not Exported to AS.**
- Export the Power Pivot Model using the Export > Create > Create Relational Objects option

| ĸ | Properties for Model PBI Dimension Template | | | | | | | | |
|-------|---|--|---|--|----|--|--|--|--|
| | I∃↓₽ | Search | _ | | × | | | | |
| - | Identific | ation | | | ^ | | | | |
| | Name | (i | D | PBI Dimension Template | | | | | |
| | ID | (| D | PBIDIMENSIONTEMPLATE | | | | | |
| | Class | | | Model | | | | | |
| | Subclas | is 🤅 | D | Power Pivot | | | | | |
| | Catego | ry | | Power BITemplates (ID: KCI_POWERBITEM! | • | | | | |
| | Descrip | tion | | Copy of object template: Power Pivot - Exp | 00 | | | | |
| 4 | Definitio | on | | | | | | | |
| | Base M | odel 🤅 🤅 |) | Revenue - Reporting (ID: EXMP_REV_RP) | Ŧ | | | | |
| | Base Vi | ew | | Power BI - Custom Dimension ReUse Tem | - | | | | |
| | Analysi | s Services Usage | | Not Exported to AS | ~ | | | | |
| * * * | Logging Accessit Miscella Power P |) bility neous Vivot Op tio ns | | | 1 | | | | |
| | Power F | Pivot Style 🥼 | D | Dimension and Fact Tables (Star Join) | ~ | | | | |
| | Power I | Pivot Anchor | | None | ~ | | | | |
| | Materia | lization Beh | 4 | Materialize without Foreign Keys | ~ | | | | |

• After exporting the model edit the dimension data source objects' **Reuse Behavior** property to **Reusable.**

| Accessibility | |
|-----------------------------------|---|
| Hidden | \checkmark |
| Owned By | Administrative User (ID: CNTADM) |
| Shared By 🥡 | Public (ID: PUBLIC) |
| Reuse Behavior | Reusable ~ |
| Dedicated Object | PBI Dimension Templates (Model) (ID: PBID 🔻 |

• **Power Pivot** models created subsequently will be able to reuse these tables.





• The reusable datasources need to be kept up to date for changes in the dimensions by exporting the template **Power Pivot** model.

Table Storage

Power Pivot models with Materialization behavior set to **Materialize** or **Materialize without Foreign Keys** create relational tables when the model is exported. Materialized data tables on SQL Server 2019 and later will use a highly efficient Column Store Index.

Creating Visualizations in Microsoft Power BI desktop

The **Power Pivot** model's export works in two stages:

- **Stage 1** (Required): Creating relational tables or relational views of data and meta-data based on one or more CONTROL® computational or source data views.
- **Stage 2** (Optional): Creating a SQL Server Analysis Services Tabular model based on those relational tables or relational views.

The output of either stage can be used by Power BI, Excel, or other products.

In the examples below, you will learn how to access data exported from a **Power Pivot** model to create visualizations in Microsoft Power BI:

SQL Server Database

You can create visualizations in Power BI by getting data from the relational tables and views in the SQL Server database.

- 1. Open your Power BI Desktop application and click **Get Data**.
- 2. Click Database > SQL Server database > Connect.



| Search | Database | |
|-----------------|---|----------|
| All | SQL Server database | <u>^</u> |
| File | Access database | |
| Database | ➢ SQL Server Analysis Services database | |
| Azure | 🧧 Oracle database | |
| Online Services | IBM DB2 database | |
| Other | IBM Informix database (Beta) | |
| | 🧧 IBM Netezza (Beta) | |
| | 🧧 MySQL database | = |
| | PostgreSQL database | |
| | 🧧 Sybase database | |
| | 🧧 Teradata database | |
| | 😜 SAP HANA database | |
| | SAP Business Warehouse server | |
| | amazon Redshift | |
| | 💠 Impala | |
| | Google BigQuery (Beta) | - |
| | | |

3. Enter the name of your SQL Server and Database.



| | | | | | × |
|----------------------------|---|--|---------------|----|--------|
| SQL Server database | | | | | |
| Server (1) | | | | | |
| Winking | | | | | |
| winkipop | - | | | | |
| Database (optional) | | | | | |
| Clean105_Dev | | | | | |
| Data Connectivity mode (1) | | | | | |
| lwsst | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| O DirectQuery | | | | | |
| > Advanced options | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | \rightarrow | ОК | Cancel |
| | | | | | |

There are two data connectivity modes **Import and DirectQuery** available when connecting to the SQL Server database. Here are the differences between the two modes:

Import: The selected tables and columns are imported into Power BI Desktop. As you create or interact with a visualization, Power BI Desktop uses the imported data. To see underlying data changes since the initial import or the most recent refresh, you must refresh the data, which imports the full dataset again.

DirectQuery: No data is imported or copied into Power BI Desktop. For relational sources, the selected tables and columns appear in the **Fields** list. As you create or interact with a visualization, Power BI Desktop queries the underlying data source, so you're always viewing current data.

4. Enter your user credentials for SQL Server.



 \times

 $\Box \times$

| | SQL Server database |
|-------------------|-----------------------|
| Windows | winkipop;Clean105_Dev |
| Database | User name CNTADM |
| Microsoft account | Password |
| | |

5. Search for your tables by name or prefix, check the box next to each of them, and then click Load.

| N 1 | | |
|------------|------|-------|
| | | 1ator |
| | avic | alu |

| | | CNTADM.Reve | enueVariancePowe | erPivot_TIMEP | . [] |
|--|---|----------------|---------------------|----------------|------|
| splay Options 🔻 | 2 | TIMEPERIOD_Key | TIMEPERIOD_MemberID | Seq_TIMEPERIOD | YR |
| Winkipop: Clean105_Dev | | 64814 | 201801 | 1 | 2018 |
| CNTADM.RevenueVariancePowerPivot EXMP ADJ | | 64815 | 201802 | 2 | 2018 |
| CNTADM.RevenueVariancePowerPivot FXMP CUST | | 64816 | 201803 | 3 | 2018 |
| | | 64817 | 201804 | 4 | 2018 |
| | | 64818 | 201805 | 5 | 2018 |
| | | 64819 | 201806 | 6 | 2018 |
| CNTADM.RevenueVariancePowerPivot_Fact | | 64820 | 201807 | 7 | 2018 |
| CNTADM.RevenueVariancePowerPivot_Info | | 64826 | 201901 | 10 | 2010 |
| CNTADM.RevenueVariancePowerPivot_REVENUE_VARANCEP. | - | 64827 | 201902 | 11 | 2019 |
| CNTADM. Revenue Variance Power Pivot_REVENUE_VARANCEP. | - | 64828 | 201903 | 12 | 2019 |
| CNTADM.RevenueVariancePowerPivot_REVENUE_VARANCEP. | | 64829 | 201904 | 13 | 2019 |
| CNTADM.RevenueVariancePowerPivot_REVENUE_VARANCEP. | | 64830 | 201905 | 14 | 2019 |
| CNTADM. Revenue Variance Power Pivot_REVENUE_VARANCEP. | | 64831 | 201906 | 15 | 2019 |
| CNTADM.RevenueVariancePowerPivot_REVENUE_VARANCEP. | | 64832 | 201907 | 16 | 2019 |
| CNTADM.RevenueVariancePowerPivot SCENARIO | | 64833 | 201908 | 17 | 2019 |
| | | | | | |

Search results are limited to already expanded items

< > Transform Data Cancel Load

Select Related Tables

KCI Computing Inc.





- Giridhar Prabhu Text box 🔏 Cut Ca New Measure 1 ել đ Copy New Column Get Recent Enter Edit Data Sources Data Queries -New New Ask A Buttons Page Visual Question + R Shapes -From From Marketplace File Switch Theme • Manage Relationships Publish New Quick Measure Server Painter Relationships Calculations Clipboard External data Insert Custom visuals Themes Share Year 2018 0.0 Fields ⊞ Q Search ~ Gross Sales by Product Group Filters 蝐 Actuals V III CNTADM RevenueVariancePowerPivot_Fact - 🗆 🗐 FullDate Level_ID MTH MTH_Name TIMEPERIOD Key TIMEPERIOD_MemberID YR_Name
- 6. After the tables load, you can begin creating your visualizations.

Note: If the **Materialization Behavior** property of your Power Pivot table is **Materialize**, the export process will automatically create foreign key relationships between the fact and the dimension tables, so you do not need define those in Power BI.

The variables/accounts are exported with default summation logic from the **Power Pivot** model to the relational tables in SQL Server database. You need to create measures involving ratios or any additional measures in Power BI.



You may notice in the screenshot above that the **Sales Trend** line chart does not have the months in the right order. No comparable type of order is available for hierarchy members when directly using the data from the SQL Server staging tables. You will need to perform additional steps to get the sorting working in your visualizations. Similarly, you need to rename the column names in Power BI to the desired name.





SQL Server Analysis Services

If you are already using Analysis Services in your organization then we suggest using it to create visualizations in Power BI.

The table below lists the advantages of using Analysis Services compared to connecting to SQL Server database

| Functionality | Analysis Services |
|-----------------------|--|
| Naming and Clutter | The design pane in Power BI is readable and uncluttered. |
| | CONTROL [®] uses level and dimension names for columns in the |
| | dimension tables during the export to Analysis Services. However, if |
| | you wish you can override the names by updating the Alias field. |
| | Using AS Usage property, you can hide columns that are unlikely to be used. |
| Measures | Variables/accounts part of the CONTROL [®] view(s) in the Power Pivot model are exported with default summation logic. You can override the default summation logic and define additional DAX measures |
| | using the AS Usage and AS Definitions properties in the Power Pivot model. |
| | With everything already part of the AS Tabular model you are ready to create visualizations in Power BI without any additional work. |
| Sequencing | The member sequence in the hierarchies is passed on to Analysis Services. Visualizations in Power BI like a line chart using the time dimensions benefit with this ordering available by default. |
| Hierarchies | The parent-child relationship that is part of the hierarchy is used to |
| | hierarchy in Power BI to drill data starting at summary levels. |
| Calculation Groups | Calculation Groups included in your Power Pivot model are available for use in Power BI. |

The following steps show you how to create visualizations in Power BI by getting data from an Analysis Services Tabular model:

KCI Computing Inc.





1. Open your Power BI Desktop application and click Get Data.



2. Click Database > SQL Server Analysis Services database > Connect.



3. Enter the name of your SQL Server Analysis Services server and database, leave the connection mode as **connect live** and click **OK**.



| Server 🛈 | |
|-------------------------------|-----|
| Bells | |
| Database (optional) | |
| RevenueReporting | |
| O Import | |
| • Connect live | |
| ▷ MDX or DAX query (optional) | |
| | |
| | col |

Note: You can find this information in your **Power Pivot** model's properties dialogue under the **Power Pivot Options** group. If **AS Server** is not specified in the **Power Pivot** model the replacement value of keyword **KCI_ASSERVER** serves as the Analysis Services Server for the export.

| AS Database[AS Model] | RevenueReporting | |
|-----------------------|------------------|--|
| AS Server | Bells | |
| Impersonation Mode | Service Account | |

4. Once you are in the Power BI designer, you can easily create interesting visualizations that you can save and share or publish to either an on-premises server or Microsoft's Power BI cloud server.




~

| A | 1 | | | | | | | | | | Scali |
|--------------------------------|--|----------------------|---------------------|-------------------|---------------------|----------------------|-------------------|---------------|-------------------|--------------------|-------|
| COMPANY NAME Concerny Boger | | | | | | | | | | | 1. N |
| | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Scenario Actuals | PBI - Calc Group - Scenario Ti Country Name | me Variance Measures | Alpha Amou Units | nt Gross Sales | Compare An Units | nount Gross Sales | Variance Units | Gross Sales | Variance Units | Pct Gross Sales | |
| Budget | Canada | | 1 211 004 | 6 210 200 | 1 001 165 | E 740.069 | 120 710 | 460.222 | 11.05% | 0.169/ | |
| Forecast | Canada | | 2,509,026 | 10 252 126 | 2,240,902 | 16 069 007 | 250,719 | 1 204 000 | 11.00% | 0.10/8 | |
| | I talu | | 5,596,950 | 17,000,509 | 2 101 765 | 16 5 40 754 | 252,007 | 1,204,090 | 11.05% | 0.10/6 | |
| ne | lanan | | 2 222 570 | 16 000 040 | 2 005 612 | 14 975 010 | 227.057 | 1,550,744 | 10.05% | 9.16% | |
| VD | Spain | | 3,323,570 | 16 542 657 | 2,995,012 | 15 204 374 | 222,957 | 1 2 / 8 2 8 3 | 10.95% | 8 16% | |
| VTD | Taiwan | | 3 488 789 | 17 447 801 | 3 1/2 727 | 16 131 301 | 346.062 | 1 316 501 | 11.01% | 8 16% | |
| 11D | Thailand | | 3,433,716 | 16 005 274 | 3,093,689 | 15 712 837 | 340,002 | 1 282 437 | 10.00% | 8 16% | |
| | United States | | 9 503 641 | 40 603 077 | 7 749 557 | 27 622 272 | 945,094 | 3 070 704 | 10.01% | 9.16% | |
| 2010 | Total | | 30 573 040 | 150 241 763 | 27 548 970 | 138 904 754 | 3 024 070 | 11 337 009 | 10.98% | 8 16% | |
| 2018 | i di la | | 50,575,040 | 150,241,705 | 21,540,510 | 150,504,154 | 2,024,070 | | | 0.1070 | |
| 2019 | Gross Sales by Region | | | Gross Sale: | s by Produc | t Group | | | | | |
| mpare | PBI - Calc Alpha Amount | Compare Amount | | PBI - Calc Grou | p - Sce A | pha Amount 🔍 | Compare Amo | unt | | | |
| Actuals | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Budget | | 5114 | | | | | | | 711 | | |
| Forecast | Asia | 47M | | Product Group | 0001 | | | | 66M | | |
| PY Actual | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | Europe | 53M | | Product Group | 0002 | | 41 | M | | | |
| | | 49M | | | | | 38M | | | | |
| | | 47M | | | | | 38M | | | | |
| | North Am | 43M | | Product Group | 0003 | | 35M | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | OM | 50M | | | OM | 20M | 40M | 60M | | ROM | |

Here are some important details about the exported structures:

- 1. Each view dimension-branch has become a dimension table, and all the levels in the branch are available for use in visualizations.
- 2. The branch itself has become a "hierarchy" (in the Analysis Services sense), so you can navigate up and down the levels of detail.



| ^ ⊞ | Customer |
|---------------|----------------------------|
| $\wedge \Box$ | 🖁 A - Total Customer |
| C | Total Customer |
| | Region |
| | Country |
| | Legal Entity |
| | Customer |
| | Country |
| | Country Name |
| | Customer |
| | Customer MemberID |
| | Customer Name |
| | FormulaDepth_EXMP_CUST |
| | FormulaParentKey_EXMP_CUST |
| | FormulaType_EXMP_CUST |
| | Legal Entity |
| | Legal Entity Name |
| | Region |

3. CONTROL® exports its numeric formatting, to the extent possible, to display in Power BI.

| Revenue - Variance Po | wer Pivot - Fact | | | | | | | |
|------------------------------|---|----------|------|----------------------------|----|---------------|------------------|--|
| Updating: Clear and Insert F | ilter: | | | | | | | |
| ID | Description | DataType | Size | Alias | | NumericFormat | ASUsage | ASDefinition |
| SCENARIO_Key | Key column SCENARIO | Integer | | SCENARIO_Key | | | Base - Automatic | |
| EXMP_ADJ_Key | Key column EXMP_ADJ | Integer | | EXMP_ADJ_Key | | | Base - Automatic | |
| EXMP_CUST_Key | Key column EXMP_CUST | Integer | | EXMP_CUST_Key | | \sim | Base - Automatic | |
| EXMP_PROD_Key | Key column EXMP_PROD | Integer | | EXMP_PROD_Key | | | Base - Automatic | |
| TIMEPERIOD_Key | Key column TIMEPERIOD | Integer | | TIMEPERIOD_Key | 1 | | Base - Automatic | |
| Units | Sum of Units | Float | | Units | 1 | (9,999) | Base - Automatic | |
| Price | Sum of Price | Float | | Price | 1 | (9,999.99) | Base - Automatic | |
| GrossSales | Testing to see if I can save | Float | | Gross Sales | | (9,999) | Base - Automatic | |
| SalesDiscount | Sum of Sales Discount | Float | | Sales Discount | | (9,999) | Base - Automatic | |
| SalesReturnsandAllowances | Sum of Sales Returns and Allowances | Float | | Sales Returns and Allowand | es | (9,999) | Base - Automatic | |
| ShippingCharges | Sum of Shipping Charges | Float | | Shipping Charges | | (9,999) | Base - Automatic | |
| OtherIncomes | Sum of Other Incomes | Float | | Other Incomes | | (9,999) | Base - Automatic | |
| NetRevenue | Sum of Net Revenue | Float | | Net Revenue | 1 | (9,999) | Base - Automatic | |
| TotalSales | Running total of Gross Sales for catego | Float | 25 | Total Sales | 1 | (9,999) | Measure | CALCULATE([Gross Sales], ALL('Fact')) |
| PercentOfTotal | | Float | | % of Total | 1 | 99.99% | Measure | DIVIDE([Gross Sales],[Total Sales]) |

4. CONTROL® exports the member sequence to Power BI. In the screenshot below, you can see that the Month ID sorts the month, though the visualization shows the Month names.



| Sales | Trend | | | | | | |
|---------|-------|---|---|--------------|--------|---|--|
| • Fored | ast | | | | | | |
| 160M | | | | | ~ | | |
| 1222007 | | | - | / | \sim | | |
| 150M | | / | | \checkmark | | - | |

Excel Pivot Table using an Analysis Services Model Example

If you like using Pivot Table in Excel, it is very simple to connect to AS and access a model built by CONTROL[®], and you do not need a CONTROL[®] license to do so.

Please note that to use Excel Pivot Table with your **Power Pivot** model, you need to set the **Analysis Services Usage** property to **Exported to AS – Power BI and Excel (Recommended).** This setting is required as Power BI and Excel Pivot Table handle **Sum** measures differently. Setting this property appropriately will ensure the data is appropriately exported for Excel Pivot Table.

| Real Properties for Mode | el Revenue | e – Variance Power Pivot | × |
|--------------------------|------------|---|---|
| I∃ ↓ ^A Search | | | × |
| Identification | | | ^ |
| Name | () | Revenue – Variance Power Pivot | |
| ID | 1 | REVENUE_VARANCEPOWERPVOT | |
| Class | | Model | |
| Subclass | 1 | Power Pivot | |
| Category | | 350 Revenue (ID: 350_REV) | • |
| Description | | Copy of object template: Power Pivot - Exported to AS | |
| Definition | | | |
| Base Model | (i) | Revenue - Reporting (ID: EXMP_REV_RP) | - |
| Base View | | Revenue - Variance Power Pivot (ID: REVENUE_VARANCEPOWERPVOT) | • |
| Analysis Services U | Usage | Exported to AS - Power BI and Excel (Recommended) | Ý |

In Excel (2016 or later):

1. From the Data ribbon, select From Other Sources > From Analysis Services



| 🔒 ਨਿੱਟ ਕੋ | ≻ , | | | | | |
|--|-------------------------|---|--|--------------------------------|------------------|---------------|
| File Hor | ne Insert | Page Layo | ut Formulas | Data | Review | View F |
| G From Access G From Web C From Text | From Other Sources • | Existing Connections | Show New Query + Co Recen | Queries Table nt Sources | Refresh All • | Connection |
| Ge A4 | t Fr Cr Ta | om SQL Server eate a connectio ble or PivotTable | on to a SQL Server ta e report. | ible. Import | t data into | Excel as a |
| A 1 | Fr Cr in | om Analysis Ser eate a connectio to Excel as a Tabl | vices on to a SQL Server A le or PivotTable rep | nalysis Serv ort. | vices cube | . Import data |
| 2 3 | Fr Cr Ta | om OData Data eate a connectio ble or PivotTable | Feed on to an OData Data e report. | Feed. Impo | ort data in | to Excel as a |

2. Specify the database:

| Data Connection Wiza | rd | | | | ? | \times |
|--|--|-------------------|----------------|----------------|---|----------|
| Connect to Database Enter the information | | | | | | |
| 1. <u>S</u> erver name: Be 2. Log on credential | IIs s s Authenticatio wing User Nam | n e and Passwo | rd | | | |
| User Name: | | | |] | | |
| Password: | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | Cancel | < <u>B</u> ack | <u>N</u> ext > | F | inish |

3. Select the model and click **Next**.



| Data Connection Wizard | ? | × | | | | | | | | | | | |
|---|---|----------|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| Select Database and Table Select the Database and Table/Cube which contains the data you want. | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Select the database that contains the data you want: | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| \Box <u>Connect to a specific cube of</u> | r table: | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Name | Description | Modifie | | | | | | | | | | | |
| RevenueReporting | Copy of object template: Power Pivot - Exported to AS | 12/1/202 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| < | | > | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Cancel < <u>B</u> ack <u>N</u> ext > | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

4. Enter a name for the connection file and click **Finish**.



| Data Connection Wizard | ? | × |
|--|-------|-----------|
| Save Data Connection File and Finish | | \square |
| Enter a name and description for your new Data Connection file, and press F to save. | inish | |
| File <u>N</u> ame: | | |
| Bells RevenueReporting.odc | Brow | wse |
| Save password in file | | |
| Description: | | |
| | | |
| Frjendly Name: | | |
| Bells RevenueReporting | | |
| Search Keywords: | | |
| Always attempt to use this file to refresh data | | |
| Excel Services: Authentication Settings | | |
| Cancel < <u>B</u> ack Next > | E | inish |

5. Choose what you want to do (Pivot Table in this example), and design whatever you would like:

| Fi | le | Home | Insert P | age Layout | Formulas | Data | Review | View | Power Pivot | Analyze | Design | ♀ Tell | l me what y | ou want to do | | | | | Sign in 🛛 🔎 | Share |
|--|--|--|--|--|---|---|------------------|------------------------------|-------------|-----------------------------|---------------------|---------|-------------|--|--|--|---------------------------------|---|------------------------------------|------------|
| Pivo Pivo | Table N tTable1 Options PivotTabl | ame: Activ Tota • | ve Field: Il Customer Field Settings Acti | Drill Down U ve Field | ↑ +1 Prill +1 < | Group Selectic Ungroup Group Field Group | Insert Slicer | Insert Timeline Filter | Filter | Refresh Cha × So Data | nge Data ource * | Clear * | ivotTable | Fields, Item Fix OLAP Tools Calculationship Calculation | s, & Sets * * ps | PivotChart Re | ecommende PivotTables pls | ed Field List Br | +/- Field uttons Header Show | rs 🔺 |
| A5 | | * : | × v | f _x | Total Custom | er | | | | | | | | | | | | | | ~ |
| 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 | Scenari Gross S Row La Total Total State Scenario Grand | A io Name iales bels Customer ia rope rth Americ Total | Actuals Column V BYear 2 r 13 ca 2 13 | B ↓ Labels ▼ 2018 38,904,754 46,720,048 48,812,365 43,372,341 38,904,754 | C * Year 2019 150,241,763 50,533,205 52,796,291 46,912,267 150,241,763 | D Grand Total 289,146,517 97,253,253 101,608,656 90,284,608 289,146,517 | E | F | G | H | 1 | J | K | Show | otTable fields: (/ b Key M 9 % 9 Gr Ne 0 Oth | e Fields All) easures of Total oss Sales t Revenue her Incomes | | | * | × × • • |
| 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 | | | | | | | | | | | | | | Drag | fields betw FILTERS mario Name ROWS Total Custo | een areas below | τ • Ε • Ε | COLUMNS - MY : VALUES irross Sales | | • • |





Pivot Table and Pivot Chart view styles

The Pivot Table and Pivot Chart *view* styles have been available in CONTROL[®] in previous releases, but their behavior has been significantly changed and improved with version 10.5. The motivation for this enhancement is to support casual users who are familiar and comfortable with Excel Pivot Tables, but are not trained in all the features of CONTROL[®] *views*.

When you save a Pivot Table or Pivot Chart style *view*, the worksheet containing the pivot table or chart is saved, including all customizations such as field assignments, formatting, added calculations, slicers, etc.

When you re-open the *view*, the data is refreshed from the underlying CONTROL[®] *model* and *view*, preserving all of your pivot table/chart customizations.

When you create a new *view* on a **Power Pivot** *model* that has a **CONTROL**[®]-**managed** or externally managed Analysis Services model, the Pivot Table or chart is connected to the Analysis Services model directly, and you can make use of all the capabilities on Excel's **PivotTable Analyze** ribbon, including the calculation tools for OLAP.

| 🧲 La 🔁 La | ← Login → Logout ៚ CONTROL® Login | | Revenue - Reporting * Model 5 | Books Books | Views | CRefresh - Regenerate Solve - Views | Select Page | File Data ▼ | Forms Forms | Sheets Sheets | Script Script | ts Transforts Transforts | orms | |
|---------------|--|----------|-------------------------------------|-----------------|------------|--|----------------|----------------|----------------|------------------|------------------|--------------------------|------|--|
| H17 | 7 | Ŧ | : × | $\sqrt{-f_s}$ | ¢ | | | | | | | | | |
| ; | | A | | A B | | | | С | | D | E | | F | |
| · » | 1 | Scenario | Name | Actuals | 1 | ſ | Tim | e_Range | Column | YR | - T - | | | |
| М | 2 | Scenario | o Name PY Actua | | | | | | | | | | | |
| M | 3 | B - MY | | Year 2019 | 9 J | .T | | | | | | | | |
| IAD | 4 | | | | | | | | | | | | _ | |
| S | 5 | Gross Sa | les | Column Labels 💌 | | | | | | | | | | |
| | 6 | Row Lab | els 💌 | Alpha Amount | | t Compare Am | ount | Variance | | Variance | Pct Gr | and Total | | |
| Ū | 7 | Total F | Product | 15 | 50,241,763 | 3 211,41 | 3,868 | -61 | l,172,106 | -28.9 | 93% 1 | 150,241,763 | 1 | |
| De | 8 | Prode | uct Group 0001 | 7 | 71,412,469 | 9 100,48 | 8,612 | -29 | 9,076,144 | -28.9 | 93% | 71,412,469 | 1 | |
| 5 | 9 | Prod | uct Group 0002 | 4 | 40,967,283 | 3 57,64 | 7,431 | -16 | 5,680,149 | -28.9 | 93% | 40,967,283 | í. | |
| n10 | 10 | Prod | uct Group 0003 | 3 | 37,862,012 | 2 53,27 | 7,825 | -19 | 5,415,813 | -28.9 | 93% | 37,862,012 | i - | |
| Clea | 11 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| b.C | 12 | Grand To | otal | 150 |),241,763 | 3 211,413 | 3,868 | -61,172,106 | | -28.9 | 93% 15 | 50,241,763 | | |
| - <u>b</u> i- | 13 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

Here's a screenshot of a view on our Revenue - Variance Power Pivot model.

The **Power Pivot Table** and **Power Pivot Chart** *views* introduced in release 10.2 are no longer supported.





Additional resources

For a deeper understanding of the features available in various Microsoft Business Intelligence (BI) products, please see the following references:

Power BI: <u>https://powerbi.microsoft.com/en-us/</u>

Analysis Services: https://www.microsoft.com/en-us/sql-server/sql-business-intelligence

Excel Power Pivot: <u>https://support.office.com/en-us/article/Power-Pivot-Powerful-data-analysis-and-data-modeling-in-Excel-A9C2C6E2-CC49-4976-A7D7-40896795D045</u>

Power BI Deployment White Paper: <u>https://docs.microsoft.com/en-us/power-bi/guidance/whitepapers</u>

CONTROL® environment setup

Recommendation for the configuration of a CONTROL® environment to support Microsoft Power BI and SQL Server Analysis Services is available from KCI in the document titled **CONTROL® and Microsoft Power BI**.